
Lesson 1 Урок 1

Vocabulary Словарь
lesson урок
where? где?
post office почтовое отделение
near около
mall торговый центр
between между
hospital больница
and и
bus автобус
stop остановка
bus stop автобусная остановка
in front of перед
museum музей
police station полицейский участок
railway station железнодорожный вокзал
shopping center торговый центр
in в
hotel гостиница
behind сзади
opposite напротив
next to следующий за
market рынок
library библиотека
university университет
bank банк
stadium стадион
my мой, моя, моё, мои
sister сестра
town город
hall зал
town hall здание муниципалитета
his его
wife жена
her ее
husband муж
our наш, наша, наше, наши
secretary секретарь
cinema кино
office офис
factory фабрика
A short conversation Короткий разговор
WHERE ARE YOU? ГДЕ ВЫ?
Emily: Where are you? Эмили: Где вы?
Dan: I'm at the post office Дэн: Я на почте.



Emily: Where's the post office? Эмили: Где находится почта?
Dan: It's near the mall Дэн: Она недалеко от 

торгового центра.
Emily: And where's the mall? Эмили: А где торговый центр?
Dan: It's between the hospital 
and the bus stop

Дэн: Он между больницей и 
автобусной остановкой

Emily: Where's the bus stop? Эмили: Где находится 
автобусная остановка?

Dan: It's in front of the museum. Дэн: Она перед музеем.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Where's the post office?
Where's the police station?
Where's the railway station?
Where's the shopping center?
Where's the bus stop?
The post office is in the hotel.
The post office is behind the 
hotel.
The post office is near the hotel.
The post office is next to the 
hotel.
The bus stop is in front of the 
market
The bus stop is in front of the 
library
The bus stop is in front of the 
university.
The bus stop is in front of the 
bank
The bus stop is in front of the 
stadium
My sister is near her husband.
His wife is near my mother.
Her husband is near my sister.
Our secretary is near my wife.
Their mother is near the town 
hall.
It's opposite the cinema
It's opposite the museum.
It's opposite the hospital.
It's opposite the office
It's opposite the factory
Prepositions Предлоги
A preposition represents the 
connection and relationship 
between a verb and a noun or 
between two nouns.

Предлог обозначает связь и 
отношение между глаголом и 
существительным или между 
двумя существительными.

Preposition have different 
meanings, depending on the 
context of the sentence they 
are used in. 
Here are some basic usages, 
more meaning will be learned 
further in the course 

Предлог имеет разные 
значения в зависимости от 
контекста предложения, в 
котором он используется. 
Вот некоторые основные 
примеры использования, 
другие значения будут 
рассмотрены далее в курсе.

at на
I'm at the post office. Я на почте.



I'm waiting at the bus stop. Я жду на автобусной 
остановке.

behind позади
The post office is behind the 
hotel.

Почтовое отделение 
находится позади отеля.

The bank is behind the town 
hall.

Банк находится позади 
здания муниципалитета.

between между
The mall is between the 
hospital and the bus stop.

Торговый центр находится 
между больницей и 
автобусной остановкой.

The university is between the 
hotel and the stadium.

Университет находится 
между гостиницей и 
стадионом.

in в
He is in the library. Он в библиотеке.
She is in the office. Она в офисе.
in front of перед
The bus stop is in front of the 
market

Автобусная остановка 
находится в передней части 
рынка.

The bus is in front of the bus 
stop

Автобус стоит перед 
автобусной остановкой

near около
We are near the town hall. Мы находимся около здания 

муниципалитета.
She is near her husband. Она находится рядом с 

мужем.
next to рядом с
It's next to the hotel Это рядом с гостиницей.
It's next to the factory Это рядом с фабрикой.
opposite напротив
The library is opposite the 
university.

Библиотека находится 
напротив университета.

The police station is opposite 
the hotel.

Полицейский участок 
находится напротив 
гостиницы.

The prepositions “between” 
and “among”

Предлоги «between» и 
«among»

The word “between” is used 
when discussing exactly two 
nouns. The word “among” is 
used when discussing more 
than two nouns.

Слово «between» 
(«между») употребляется, 
когда речь идет только о 
двух существительных. 
Слово «among» («среди») 
употребляется, когда речь 
идет о более чем двух 
существительных.

I'm between my sister and my 
wife

Я нахожусь между моей 
сестрой и моей женой.

He is walking among the trees. Он гуляет среди деревьев.
Possessive pronouns Притяжательные 

местоимения
Possessive pronoun forms Формы притяжательных 

местоимений
mine мой, моя, моё, мои
yours твой, твоя, твоё, твои
his его
hers ее
its его, ее



ours наш, наша, наше, наши
yours ваш, ваша, ваше, ваши
theirs их
Contractions Сокращения
where is = where's где находится
I am = I'm я нахожусь
it is = it's он/ она/ оно находится

Lesson 2 Урок 2
Vocabulary Словарь
do делать 
come прибывать
from из
excuse извинять
me мне, меня
U.S.A США
what что
part часть
of из
live жить
this это
your твой, твоя, твоё, твои/ ваш, 

ваша, ваше, ваши
first первый
visit визит
Los Angeles Лос-Анджелес
no нет
second второй
times раз
like нравиться
too тоже
south юг
Africa Африка
west запад
Europe Европа
London Лондон
central центральный
America Америка
to в
third третий
trip поездка
fourth четвертый
tour тур
around вокруг
fifth пятый
hike поход
want хотеть



see смотреть
walk ходить
go идти
middle средний
east восток
Middle East Средний Восток
far далекий
The Far East Дальний Восток
Asia Азия
enjoy наслаждаться
holiday праздник
vacation отпуск
leave оставлять
north север
A short conversation Короткий разговор
WHERE DO YOU COME 
FROM? 

ОТКУДА ВЫ РОДОМ?

Excuse me ,where do you 
come from?

Извините, откуда вы родом?

I'm from the U.S.A Я из США.
I live in California Я живу в Калифорнии.
Is this your first visit in Los 
Angeles?

Это ваш первый визит в Лос-
Анджелес?

No ,it's my second time Нет, это мой второй.
I like Los Angeles Мне нравится Лос-Анджелес.
I like Los Angeles, too Мне тоже нравится Лос-

Анджелес.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I'm from South Africa
I'm from West Europe
I'm from East London
I'm from North Africa.
I'm from Central America.
This is my first visit to Los 
Angeles
This is your second time in Los 
Angeles
This is his third trip to Los 
Angeles
This is her fourth tour around 
Los Angeles
This is their fifth hike near Los 
Angeles
I want to visit London
I want to see London
I want to walk in London
I want to go to London
I want to live in London
I live in Los Angeles
I live in the U.S.A.
I live in the Middle East.
I live in the Far East.
I live in East Asia.
I enjoy my visit to California



I enjoy my holiday in California
I enjoy my vacation in California
I enjoy my leave in California
I enjoy my tour around 
California
The definite article “the” Определенный артикль «the»
The definite article “the” is not 
usually used before the names 
of countries.

Определенный артикль «the» 
обычно не употребляется с 
названиями стран.

I live in England. Я живу в Англии.
I'm from France Я из Франции.
I come from Italy. Я родом из Италии.
However, if the country name 
is in plural form, or if it includes 
the word “of”, then the article 
“the” is used.

Тем не менее, если 
название страны в форме 
множественного числа или 
включает предлог «of», то 
артикль «the» ставится.

I live in the United States. Я живу в Соединенных 
Штатах.

I'm from the Netherlands Я из Нидерландов.
I enjoyed my visit to the Republic 
of South Africa.

Я получил удовольствие 
от своего визита в Южно-
Африканскую Республику.

Ordinal numbers Порядковые числительные
first первый
second второй
third третий
fourth четвертый
fifth пятый
sixth шестой
seventh седьмой
eighth восьмой
ninth девятый
tenth десятый
The phrases “excuse me” and 
“I’m sorry”

Выражения «excuse me» и 
«I’m sorry»

We use the phrase “excuse 
me”, before we address 
someone or interrupt them. In 
contrast, we use the phrase 
“I’m sorry” after we address 
someone or interrupt them.

Выражение «excuse me» 
(«извините») используется 
перед обращением к кому-то 
или прерыванием чьей-то 
речи. Напротив, «I’m sorry» 
(«я сожалею») используется 
после обращения к кому-то 
или прерывания чьей-то речи.

Excuse me, could you change 
some dollars please? 

Извините, не могли бы 
вы разменять несколько 
долларов, пожалуйста?

Excuse me, where's the mall? Извините, где находится 
торговый центр?

Excuse me, could I get past? Извините, я могу пройти?
I'm sorry ,I can't understand you Мне очень жаль, я не могу 

вас понять.
More prepositions Еще предлоги
around по



I enjoy my tour around 
California.

Я наслаждаюсь своим туром 
по Калифорнии.

from из
I'm from the U.S.A. Я из США.
of от
What part of the U.S.A? Какой части США?
to в
This is my first visit to Florida. Это мой первый визит во 

Флориду.
The word “too” Слово «too»
The word “too” means “also”. 
It appears at the end of the 
sentence.

Слово «too» означает 
«тоже» и ставится в конце 
предложения.

I like Los Angeles, too. Мне тоже нравится Лос-
Анджелес.

I enjoyed my visit, too Я тоже получил удовольствие 
от своего визита.

I'll go too. Я тоже пойду.
Capital letters Заглавные буквы
Los Angeles Лос-Анджелес
London Лондон
New York Нью-Йорк
California Калифорния
England Англия
France Франция
South Africa ЮАР
South America Южная Америка
West Europe Западная Европа
East Europe Восточная Европа
Italy Италия
Asia Азия
Europe Европа
America Америка

Africa Африка
Australia Австралия
The Middle East Ближний Восток
The Far East Дальний Восток
Central America Центральная Америка
We use capital letters at 
the start of people’s names, 
countries, cities, days of the 
week, months, organizations, 
and companies, nationalities, 
languages and religions.

С заглавной буквы 
начинаются имена людей, 
названия стран, городов, 
дней недели, месяцев, 
организаций и компаний, 
национальностей, языков и 
религий.

Reminder: We also use capital 
letters at the beginning of a 
sentence. For example:
“Where do you come from?”

The pronoun “I” is capitalized, 
even when it does not appear 
at the start of a sentence. For 
example:
“Where am I? I am here.”

Напоминание: с заглавной 
буквы также начинаются 
предложения. Например: 
«Where do you come from?»

Местоимение «I» («я») 
пишется с заглавной буквы, 
даже если оно не находится 
в начале предложения. 
Например: «Where am I? I 
am here.» 
(«Где я? Я здесь»).



Lesson 3 Урок 3 
Vocabulary Словарь
profession профессия
driver водитель
work работать
new новый
company компания
bus company автобусная компания
how как
much много
do делать
earn зарабатывать
one один
thousand тысяча
dollar доллар
month месяц
radio радио
radio station радиостанция
coffee кофе
shop магазин
coffee bar кофейня
trade профессиональный
union союз
trade-union профсоюз
supermarket супермаркет
air воздух
port порт
airport аэропорт
sport спорт
club клуб
playground детская площадка
pharmacy аптека
spend тратить
have иметь
need нуждаться
take принимать
nine девять
hundred сто
pound фунт
clerk клерк
French французский
ministry министерство



education образование
New York Нью-Йорк
department отдел
store магазин
department store универмаг
A short conversation Короткий разговор
WHAT'S YOUR 
PROFESSION?

КТО ВЫ ПО ПРОФЕССИИ?

What's your profession? Кто вы по профессии?
I'm a driver. Я водитель.
Where do you work? Где вы работаете?
At the New Bus Company. В New Bus Company.
Where is it? Где она находится?
It's near the museum. Она находится рядом с 

музеем.
How much do you earn? Сколько вы зарабатываете?
I earn one thousand dollars a 
month

Я зарабатываю тысячу 
долларов в месяц.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I work at the bus company
I work at the radio station
I work at the coffee bar
I work at the trade union.
I work at the supermarket
It's near the university
It's near the airport
It's near the sports club
It's near the playground
It's near the pharmacy
How much do you earn?

How much do you spend?
How much do you have?
How much do you need?
How much do you take?
I earn nine hundred dollars a 
month
I earn nine hundred pounds a 
month
I'm a clerk at the post office
I'm a clerk at YaleUniversity.
I'm a clerk at the Ministry of 
Education
I'm a clerk at the University of 
New York.
I'm a clerk at the department 
store
The phrase “how much” Фраза «how much»
how much? сколько?
How much do you earn? Сколько вы зарабатываете?
How much do you spend? Сколько вы тратите?
How much do you need? Сколько вам нужно?
The word “month” Слово «month» («месяц»)
In which month were you born? В каком месяце вы родились?
a month в месяц



 I earn nine hundred dollars a 
month

Я зарабатываю девятьсот 
долларов в месяц.

Proper nouns Собственные имена
Proper nouns start with a 
capital letter. For example:
“New Bus Company”.
These three words are the 
company’s name; therefore, 
they all start with a capital letter.

Собственные имена 
начинаются с заглавной 
буквы. Например: «New Bus 
Company».
Эти три слова составляют 
название компании, поэтому 
все они начинаются с 
заглавной буквы.

Other proper nouns Другие имена собственные

Yale University Йельский университет
University of New York Университет Нью-Йорка
Ministry of Education Министерство образования
The British Museum Британский музей
Oxford Street Оксфорд-стрит
The Jordan River Река Иордан
Trafalgar Square Трафальгарская площадь
Compound nouns Сложные существительные
By combining two nouns, we 
can create a new noun with a 
different meaning.

Объединив два 
существительных, 
можно создать новое 
существительное с другим 
значением.

bus автобус
company компания
bus company
town
hall
town hall
In these cases, the new noun 
is made up of two separate 
words.

В этих случаях новое 
существительное состоит из 
двух отдельных слов.

In other cases, we connect the 
two original words to create a 
single word.

В других случаях слияние 
двух слов образует единое 
слово.

play играть
ground площадка

playground детская площадка
hair волосы
cut резать
haircut стрижка
Contractions Сокращения
what is? = what's



Lesson 4 Урок 4 

Vocabulary Словарь
ask спрашивать
direction направление
can мочь
tell говорить
get получать
bus station автобусная станция
yes да
of course конечно
down вниз
this этот, эта, это
street улица
turn повернуть
left налево
traffic light светофор
on на
right направо
can't не мочь
miss пропускать
how far как далеко
not не
within в пределах
walking ходьба
distance расстояние
how long как долго
there там
more больше
ten десять
minute минута
which который
number номер
four четыре
air terminal аэровокзал
subway station станция метро
underground метро
tube метро
aid помощь
first aid первая помощь
other другой
side сторона
square площадь
art искусство
gallery галерея
art gallery художественная галерея
last последний
next следующий

clinic клиника



terminal терминал
swimming pool бассейн
A short conversation Короткий разговор
ASKING DIRECTIONS ВОПРОСЫ О 

НАПРАВЛЕНИИ ДВИЖЕНИЯ

Excuse me. Can you tell me 
how to get to the bus station?

Извините, вы можете мне 
сказать, как добраться до 
автобусной станции?

Yes, of course. Go down this 
street and turn left at the traffic 
light.

Да, конечно. Идите вниз 
по этой улице и поверните 
налево на светофоре.

The bus station is on the right. 
You can't miss it.

Автобусная станция 
находится справа. Вы не 
можете ее не заметить.

How far is it? Как далеко она находится?
It's not far. It's within walking 
distance.

Недалеко. Она в нескольких 
минутах ходьбы.

How long will it take me to get 
there?

Сколько времени займет мне 
туда добраться?

Not more than ten minutes. Не больше десяти минут.
Which bus goes there? Какой автобус туда ходит?
Bus number four. Автобус номер четыре.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Can you tell me the way to the 
bus stop?
Can you tell me the way to the 
railway station?
Can you tell me the way to the 
air terminal?
Can you tell me the way to the 
airport?
Can you tell me the way to the 
subway station?
Where is the nearest bus 
station?
Where is the nearest police 
station?
Where is the nearest 
underground station?
Where is the nearest tube 
station?
Where is the nearest first-aid 
station?
The bus stop is opposite the 
town hall.
The bus stop is near the traffic 
light.
The bus stop is in the next 
street.
The bus stop is on the other 
side of the square.
The bus stop is in front of the 
art gallery.
Take the first turn on the left.
Take the second turn on the 
left.
Take the third turn on the right.



Take the last turn on the right.
Take the next turn on the left.
The radio station is behind the 
clinic.
The terminal is behind the 
hospital.
The town hall is behind the 
police station.
The supermarket is behind the 
cinema.
The swimming pool is behind 
the shopping center.

The verb "get" Глагол «get»
The verb "get" is one of the 
most used words in the English 
language. 
It has various meanings: to buy, 
to receive, to prepare, to come, 
to go, etc.
Adding a preposition after the 
verb "get" changes its meaning:

«Get» («получать») является 
одним из наиболее часто 
используемых глаголов в 
английском языке.  
Он имеет разные значения: 
покупать, получать, 
становиться, добираться, 
попасть и т.д.
Добавление предлога после 
глагола «get» меняет его 
значение:

get to добраться до
get on садиться в
get up вставать
get into входить
get out выходить
get near приблизиться
Contractions Сокращения
Cannot= can't
The phrases “bus station” and 
“bus stop”

Словосочетания «bus 
station» и «bus stop»

In English, we differentiate 
between a “bus stop”, which 
is a place that a bus stops on 
the side of the road, and a “bus 
station”, which is usually a 
building off the road.

В английском языке 
различают «bus stop», 
остановку автобуса на 
обочине дороги, и «bus 
station», здание автобусной 
станции вне дороги.

bus station автобусная станция
bus stop автобусная остановка
The word “how” Вопросительное слово «how»
how как
Adding an adjective after the 
adverb “how” changes its 
meaning.

Добавление прилагательного 
после наречия «how» меняет 
его значение.

How long will it take? Сколько времени это 
займет?

How far is it? На каком это расстоянии?
How is the weather? Как погода?
How can I get to the airport? Как мне добраться до 

аэропорта?
The word “other” Слово «other»
other другой



on the other side с другой стороны
The post office is on the other 
side of the street.

Почтовое отделение 
находится на другой стороне 
улицы.

The prefix "sub" Приставка sub-
The prefix "sub" is used before 
a noun, and it means "under", 
"below", or "secondary".

Приставка sub- 
употребляется перед 
существительным и 
означает «под», «ниже» или 
«вторичный».

subway метро
subcommittee подкомитет
subconscious подсознание
subcontractor субподрядчик
subgroup подгруппа
submarine подводная лодка
The words "subway", "tube", 
and "underground"

Слова «subway», «tube» и 
«underground»

The words "subway", "tube", 
and "underground" all mean 
the same thing: a railway 
system under the ground.

Существительные «subway», 
«tube» и «underground» 
обозначают одно и то же: 
железнодорожную систему 
под землей.

Americans say: Американцы говорят:
subway
The British say: Англичане говорят:
underground
In London, the underground is 
also called:

В Лондоне метро также 
называют:

"The Tube"
The word "underground" can 
also mean "under the ground" 
or refer to an illegal or secret 
movement.

Слово «underground» может 
также означать «под землей» 
или относиться к незаконному 
или тайному движению.

The helping verb "will" Вспомогательный глагол 
«will»

The helping verb “will” is used 
to indicate Future Tense.

Вспомогательный 
глагол «will» служит для 
обозначения будущего 
времени.

I will go. Я пойду.
He will tell me. Он мне скажет.
It will take you ten minutes to get 
there.

Это займет у вас десять 
минут, чтобы добраться туда.

The verb "go" Глагол «go»
The verb "go" has many 
different menaings: to walk, to 
drive, to fly, and more.

Глагол «go» имеет множество 
разных значений: ходить, 
ездить, летать и другие.

I go to Los Angeles by car. Я езжу в Лос-Анджелес на 
машине.

She goes to London by plane. Она летает в Лондон на 
самолете.

We go to New York by train. Мы ездим в Нью-Йорк на 
поезде.

The phrase “It’s not far” Фраза «It’s not far»
It's not far. Это недалеко.
Or или
It isn't far. Это недалеко.



The bus-station isn't far from 
here.

Автовокзал находится 
недалеко отсюда.

Conjugations of the verb “go” in 
Future Tense

Спряжение глагола «go» в 
будущем времени

I will go я пойду
you will go ты пойдешь
he will go он пойдет
she will go она пойдет
it will go он/ она/ оно пойдет
we will go мы пойдем
you will go вы пойдете
they will go они пойдут
More prepositions Еще предлоги
on на
The driver is on vacation. Водитель в отпуске.
The bus station is on the right 
side.

Автовокзал находится на 
правой стороне.

Lesson 5 Урок 5 
Vocabulary Словарь
taxi такси
sir сэр
comprehensive комплексный
high высокий
school школа
high school средняя школа
please пожалуйста
know знать
about о
five пять
ride ездить
here здесь
we мы
across через
fare плата за проезд
half половина
isn't it? не так ли?
right правильный
three три
keep хранить
change изменение
change (v) изменять
cost стоить



owe задолжать

fee плата
ticket билет
twenty двадцать
flight полет
bill счет
give давать
cent цент
extra дополнительный
price цена
include включать
V.A.T НДС
British британский
embassy посольство
Swedish шведский
consulate консульство
northern северный

bridge мост
show показывать
site место
map карта
camp лагерь
campsite место разбивки лагеря
drive водить
slowly медленно
faster быстрее

A short conversation Короткий разговор
TAKING A TAXI Заказ такси
Taxi! Taxi! Такси! Такси!
Yes, sir. Where to? Да, сэр. Куда?
The Modern Art Museum, 
please

В музей современного 
искусства, пожалуйста.

Do you know where it is? Вы знаете, где он 
находитсяп?

Yes. It's about five minutes' ride 
from here

Да, приблизительно в пяти 
минутах езды отсюда.

There's not much traffic this 
morning.

Сегодня утром не слишком 
много дорожного движения.

Here we are. The Modern Art 
Museum is across the street

Вот и мы. Музей 
современного искусства на 
другой стороне улицы.

The fare's five and a half 
dollars, isn't it? 

Тариф пять с половиной 
долларов, не так ли?

Yes, that's right Да, это верно.
Take six dollars and keep the 
change

Возьмите шесть долларов и 
оставьте сдачу.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
How much is the fare?
How much does it cost?
How much do I owe you?
How much is the fee?
How much are the tickets?



It's a twenty minute ride from 
here.
It's a twenty minute walk from 
here.

It's a twenty minute trip from 
here.
It's a twenty minutes' flight from 
here.
It's a twenty minutes' hike from 
here.
Here is a five dollar bill, and 
keep the change.
Here is a five dollar bill, and 
please give me one dollar 
change.
Here is a five dollar bill, and 
twenty cents in change
Here is a five dollar bill extra
Here is a five dollar bill, does 
the price include VAT?
Please take me to the British 
Embassy.
Please take me to the Swedish 
Consulate
Please take me to the Northern 
Bridge
Please take me to the Ministry 
of Education
Please take me to the New York 
Public School.
Please show me this site on the 
map.
Please take me to the campsite.
Please drive more slowly
Please get me a taxi
Please do not drive faster
The words “sir” and “ma’am” Слова «sir» и «ma’am»
sir сыр
ma’am мадам
Remember: To politely address 
a man, we add “sir” at the end 
of the sentence. To politely 
address a woman, we add 
“ma’am” at the end of the 
sentence.

Помните: для вежливого 
обращения к мужчине 
добавляется «sir», а к 
женщине «ma’am», в конце 
предложения. 

Yes, sir Да, сэр.
No, sir Нет, сэр.
Yes, ma’am Да, мэм.
No, ma’am Нет, мэм.
The word “fare” Слово «fare»
In English, we use a few 
different words to refer to 
“payment”.

В английском есть разные 
слова для обозначения 
«payment».

fare плата за проезд
fee плата
rent арендная плата
admission fee плата за вход
doctor's fee гонорар врача



school fee плата за обучение в школе
Adjectives Прилагательные
We can create adjectives by 
adding the suffix “ern” to.each 
of the four cardinal directions

Прилагательные от четырех 
сторон света создаются 
добавлением суффикса -ern к 
каждой из них.

north север
northern северный
south юг
southern южный
east восток
eastern восточный
west запад
western западный
Contractions Сокращения
that is= that's
Types of schools Типы школ
school школа
college колледж
high school старшая средняя школа
secondary school средняя школа
vocational school профессиональная школа
primary school начальная школа
kindergarten подготовительная группа 

детского сада
infant school дошкольное учреждение
nursery school детский сад
The word “across” Слово «across»
across по ту сторону
The school is across the street. Школа находится по ту 

сторону улицы.
He lives across the river. Он живет по ту сторону реки.
across через
He ran across the street. Он пробежал через улицу.
There is a bridge across the 
street.

Есть мост через улицу.

The word “half” Слово «half»
half половина
Two and a half dollars. Два с половиной доллара.
One and a half dollars. Полтора доллара.
The words “high” and “tall” Слова «high» и «tall»
high высокий
It's a high bridge Это высокий мост.
tall высокий 
She is a tall girl Она высокая девушка
Note: Usually, the word “tall” 
refers and describes people, 
while the word “high” describes 
buildings, mountains, etc.

Примечание: обычно слово 
«tall» описывает людей, тогда 
как слово «high» описывает 
здания, горы и т.д.



Lesson 6 Урок 6 
Vocabulary Словарь
sight достопримечательность
sightseeing осмотр 

достопримечательностей
yesterday вчера
group группа
National Mall Национальная аллея
monument памятник
memorial мемориал
White House Белый дом
last (v) длиться
approximately приблизительно
hour час
three and a half три с половиной
excursion экскурсия
Florida Флорида
over за
Epcot Center тематический парк Epcot
Disney World Диснейуорлд
Sea World Си-Уорлд
flying полет
abroad за границей
hitchhike путешествовать автостопом
sailing мореплавание
got (past of: get) получил (прошедшее время 

от «get»)
plan план
city город
list список
leaflet листовка
table стол
timetable расписание
program программа
today сегодня
event событие
would прошедшее время от «will»
would like хотелось бы
travel путешествовать
France Франция
week неделя
fly (v) летать



sail плыть
A short conversation Короткий разговор

SIGHTSEEING ЭКСКУРСИЯ
Yesterday I took a group tour of 
Washington DC

Вчера я участвовал в 
групповой экскурсии по 
Вашингтону.

What did your tour include? Что включала в себя 
экскурсия?

It included the National Mall 
and the White House

Она включала в себя 
посещение Национальной 
аллеи и Белого дома

Did you walk through the 
National Mall?

Вы проходили по 
Национальной аллее?

Yes. We walked from the 
Capitol Building to the Lincoln 
Memorial

Да, мы прошли от Капитолия 
до Мемориала Линкольна.

How long did the tour last? Как долго длился ваш тур?
Approximately three and a half 
hours

Примерно три с половиной 
часа.

I hope you enjoyed the 
excursion

Надеюсь, вам понравилась 
экскурсия.

Yes I did Да, мне она понравилась.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I took a group tour of Florida
I took a flight over Florida
I took a trip to Florida
I took a drive around Florida
I took an excursion in Florida
The tour included Disney World
The tour included Epcot Center
The tour included Sea World
Did you enjoy flying abroad?
Did you enjoy driving?
Did you enjoy hitchhiking?
Did you enjoy sailing?
Did you enjoy sightseeing?
Do you have a plan of the city?
Do you have a list of hotels?
Do you have a leaflet on the 
tour?
Do you have a railway 
timetable?
Do you have a program of 
today's events?
I would like to travel to France 
next week
I would like to sail to France 
next week
I would like to fly to France next 
week
I would like to hitchhike to 
France next week
I would like to drive to France 
next week
The phrases “Have you got?” 
and "Do you have?"

Выражения «Have you got?» 
и «Do you have?»



The British say "Have you 
got?"

Англичане говорят: «Have 
you got?» 

have you got? У вас есть?
Have you got a plan? У вас есть план?
Have you got a map of London? У вас есть карта Лондона?
Americans prefer “Do you 
have?”

Американцы предпочитают: 
«Do you have?»

Do you have a plan? У вас есть план?
Do you have a map of London? У вас есть карта Лондона?
The word “enjoy” Слово «enjoy»
The word “enjoy” is followed by 
a verb with the suffix “ing”.

Слово « enjoy» 
(«наслаждаться») 
предшествует глаголу с 
окончанием –ing.

I enjoy sailing abroad. Я люблю плавание за 
рубежом.

I enjoy driving to Florida Я люблю вождение во 
Флориду.

The word “enjoy” can also be 
followed by a noun.

Слово «enjoy» также 
может предшествовать 
существительному.

I enjoy to travel around the 
world

Я люблю путешествовать по 
всему миру.

I enjoy a drive. Я люблю езду.
Note: We don’t use the article 
“a” before “travel”, because 
“travel” is a non-count noun. 
In contrast, “drive” is a count 
noun, so we do use the article 
“a” before it. 
The words “travel” and “drive” 
are both nouns and verbs.

Примечание: перед 
«travel» артикль «a» не 
ставится, потому что 
«travel» - неисчисляемое 
существительное. Напротив, 
«drive» - исчисляемое 
существительное и перед ним 
ставится артикль «a». Слова 
«travel» и «drive» являются 
как существительными, так и 
глаголами.

Capital letters Заглавные буквы
The word “mall” means 
“shopping center”. In this 
lesson, we capitalize the word 
“Mall”, because it is part of 
“National Mall”, which is a 
name.

Слово «mall» означает 
«торговый центр». В этом 
уроке слово «Mall» пишется 
с большой буквы, потому что 
входит в состав названия 
«National Mall».

Washington Monument Монумент Вашингтона
The White House Белый дом
National Mall Национальная аллея
Lincoln Memorial Мемориал Линкольна
Jefferson Memorial Мемориал Джефферсона
Capitalized adjectives Прилагательные с заглавной 

буквы
Adjectives that represent a 
language, religion or nationality 
are also capitalized.

Прилагательные, 
обозначающие язык, религию 
или национальность, 
начинаются с заглавной 
буквы.

Jewish еврейский
Moslem мусульманский
Chinese китайский
Armenian армянский
Christian христианский



English английский
French французский
Short answers Короткие ответы
Did you enjoy the excursion?
Yes, I enjoyed the excursion = 
Yes, I did
The word “program” Слово «program»
program программа
The British use the following 
spelling: “programme”.

Британцы пользуются 
следующим написанием: 
«programme».

The location of adverbs Расположение наречий
Yesterday I took a trip to Los 
Angeles
We usually use adverbs of 
time at the beginning or end of 
the sentence. We usually use 
adverbs of time at the beginning 
or end of the sentence.

Наречия времени обычно 
располагаются в начале или в 
конце предложения.

Did you enjoy flying abroad? Понравился ли вам полет за 
границу?

Note: The word “abroad” is an 
adverb (and not a noun), so we 
do not use the word “to” before 
it.

Примечание: «abroad» 
- это наречие (а не 
существительное), поэтому 
перед ним не ставится 
предлог «to».

I'm going abroad Я собираюсь за границу.
And not... А не...
I am going overseas Я собираюсь за границу

Lesson 7 Урок 7 

Vocabulary Словарь
restaurant ресторан
order заказывать
I'll Я буду
start начинать
with с
some немного

chicken курица
soup суп
main основной
roast жареный
mashed пюре
potatoes картофель
cauliflower цветная капуста



something что-нибудь
drink пить
glass стакан
grapefruit грейпфрут
juice сок
dessert десерт 
fruit фрукты
cocktail коктейль
salad салат
onion лук
chopped рубленый
liver печень
try пробовать
lamb ягненок
chop рубить
fried жареный
fish рыба
chips  / French fries жареный картофель/ 

картофель фри
steak стейк
peas горох
boil варить
meat мясо
mushrooms грибы
bake запекать
poached пашот
egg яйцо
barbecued прожаренный целиком
stewed тушеный
only только
vegetable овощ
omelette омлет
hungry голодный
thirsty жаждущий
starving голодающий
tired усталый
bored скучающий
A short conversation Короткий разговор

IN THE RESTAURANT В РЕСТОРАНЕ
Excuse me, Sir. Would you like 
to order?

Извините, сэр. Что будете 
заказывать?

Yes. I'll start with some chicken 
soup

Да. Я начну с куриного супа.

What would you like for your 
main course?

Что вы будете на основное 
блюдо?

I'll have roast chicken with 
mashed potatoes and 
cauliflower

Я буду жареную курицу 
с картофельным пюре и 
цветной капустой.

Would you like something to 
drink?

Вы будете что-нибудь пить?

Yes. I'll have a glass of 
grapefruit juice

Да, стакан грейпфрутового 
сока.



What would you like for 
dessert?

Что вы будете на десерт?

I'd like some fruit cocktail Какой-нибудь фруктовый 
коктейль.

Yes, Sir. Да, сэр.
Exercise Упражнение

Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I'll start with some chicken soup
I'll start with some salad
I'll start with some onion soup
I'll start with some juice
I'll start with some chopped liver
I'll try the lamb chops with 
mashed potatoes
I'll try fried fish with chips
I'll try steak with peas
I'll try boiled meat with 
mushrooms
I'll try baked potatoes with 
poached eggs
I'd like my meat roasted
I'd like my meat boiled
I'd like my meat barbecued
I'd like my meat stewed
I'd like my meat fried
I only want a vegetable 
omelette
I only want fish and chips
I only want mashed potatoes
I only want a fruit salad
I only want roasted meat
I'm hungry
I'm thirsty
I'm starving
I'm tired
I'm bored
Contractions Сокращения
I will = I'll
The verb “have” Глагол «have»
The verb “have” is one of the 
most used words in the English 
language. It has a variety of 
meanings: to eat, to drink, to 
take, to give birth, and more.

Глагол «have» является 
одним из наиболее 
употребительных слов в 
английском языке. Он имеет 
целый ряд значений, заменяя 
многие глаголы: есть, пить, 
принимать, рожать и другие.

I'll have roast chicken Я буду жареную курицу.
I'll have a glass of juice Я буду стакан сока.
She'll have a baby У нее будет ребенок.
I'll have a holiday У меня будет отпуск.
The phrase “I would like” Выражение «I would like»
I would like Я хотел бы
I would like a glass of juice. Я хотел бы стакан сока.
I'd like some fruit. Я хотел бы немного фруктов.



Remember: "I would like" is a 
polite request. Its interrogative 
form is "Would you like?" and 
its contracted form is "I'd like".
The word fruit is a non-count 
noun, so it does not have a 
plural form (that is, we don't say 
"fruits").

Помните: выражение «I 
would like» - это вежливая 
просьба. Его вопросительная 
форма: «Would you like?» и 
его сокращенная форма: «I’d 
like».  
Слово «fruit» не имеет 
множественного числа (то 
есть, не говорят «fruits»).

The word "glass" Слово «glass»
glass стакан
When the word “glass” means 
“cup”, it is a count noun, and 
we use the article “a” before it.

Когда слово «glass» означает 
«стакан», оно исчисляемое 
существительное и перед ним 
используется артикль «a».

I'll have a glass of juice Я буду стакан сока.
When the word “glass” refers 
to a material, it is a non-count 
noun, and we do not use the 
article “a” before it.

Когда слово «glass» 
относится к материалу, 
оно неисчисляемое 
существительное и артикль 
«a» перед ним не ставится.

This is made of glass Это сделано из стекла.
Those who live in glass houses 
should not throw stones

Те, кто живет в стеклянных 
домах, не должны бросать 
камни.

Lesson 8 Урок 8 
Vocabulary Словарь
having  
(-breakfast)

завтрак

breakfast завтрак
good хороший
menu меню
we'd мы бы
plain простой
prefer предпочитать
bread хлеб
roll булочка
butter масло
marmalade джем
tea чай
coffee кофе
cup чашка
milk молоко
sugar сахар



artificial искусственный
sweetener подсластитель
thank благодарить
thank you спасибо
recommend рекомендовать
light легкий
meal еда
could мог, могла, могло, могли
choose выбирать
ice cream мороженое
stuffed фаршированный
hamburger гамбургер
lunch ланч
dinner обед
sandwich бутерброд
supper ужин
bring приносить
lemon лимон
squash патиссон
invitation приглашение
slice ломтик
watermelon арбуз
piece кусок
apple яблоко
pie пирог
red красный
pepper перец
sauce соус
cold холодный
scrambled egg яичница
hard-boiled egg яйцо вкрутую
lettuce салат-латук
pot кастрюля
A short conversation Короткий разговор
HAVING BREAKFAST ЗАВТРАК
Good morning. Here's our 
breakfast menu

Доброе утро, вот наше меню 
завтрака.

We'd like plain omelettes and 
vegetable salad

Мы хотели бы простые 
омлеты и овощной салат.

Would you prefer bread or 
rolls?

Вы предпочитаете хлеб или 
булочки?

We'll have rolls with butter and 
marmalade

Мы будем булочки с маслом и 
джемом.

Would you like tea or coffee? Хотите чай или кофе?
Two cups of tea with milk 
please

Две чашки чая с молоком, 
пожалуйста.

Would you like sugar or an 
artificial sweetener?

Вы хотели бы сахар 
или искусственный 
подсластитель?

We'll take sugar, thank you! Мы возьмем сахар, спасибо!
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I recommend a light meal
I'm ordering a light meal
Can I have a light meal



Could I have a light meal
I'll choose a light meal
I'll have a cup of coffee for 
breakfast
I'll have ice cream for dessert
I'll have a hamburger for lunch
I'll have stuffed vegetables for 
dinner
I'll have a sandwich for supper
May I have the menu please?
May I take your order please?
May I order dessert please?
May I bring you some lemon 
squash please?
May I have your invitation 
please?
I'd prefer some fruit salad.
I'd prefer a slice of watermelon
I'd prefer a piece of apple pie
I'd prefer red peppers in sauce.
I'd prefer cold beer with my 
meal.
I'll have a scrambled egg
I'll have a poached egg
I'll have a hard-boiled egg.
I'll have a lettuce salad
I'll have a pot of coffee
The indefinite articles "a" and 
"an"

Неопределенные артикли «a» 
и «an»

We use the indefinite article “a” 
or “an” before a non-specific 
count noun in singular form.
We do not use these articles 
before a count noun in plural 
form, or before a non-count 
noun.
We use the definite article 
"the" before specific nouns, 
regardless of their type or form.

Неопределенный артикль 
«a» или «an» употребляется 
перед неконкретными 
исчисляемыми 
существительными в 
единственном числе 
и не употребляется 
перед исчисляемыми 
существительными во 
множественном числе.
Определенный артикль 
«the» употребляется 
перед конкретными 
существительными, 
независимо от их типа или 
формы.

We use the indefinite article "a" 
before nouns that start with a 
consonant.

Неопределенный артикль 
«а» употребляется перед 
существительными, которые 
начинаются с согласной.

a bus автобус
a station станция
a grapefruit грейпфрут
a hospital больница
a glass стакан
a potato картофель
We use the indefinite article 
“an” before nouns that start with 
a vowel.

Неопределенный артикль 
«аn» употребляется перед 
существительными, которые 
начинаются с гласной.



an egg яйцо
an excursion экскурсия
an onion лук
an omelette омлет
an airport аэропорт
an invitation приглашение
The words “invitation” and 
“order”

Слова «invitation» и «order»

invitation приглашение
I invited my friend Я пригласил своего друга.
order заказывать
I ordered a meal Я заказал еду
The words “can” and “could” Слова «can» и «could»
can мочь
The verb “can” does not 
change when used after a 
pronoun. It has no plural form, 
and we do not add s to it in the 
third-person singular form in the 
Present Tense.

Глагол «can» не изменяется 
при употреблении после 
местоимения. У него нет 
формы множественного 
числа и к нему не 
прибавляется -s в форме 3-го 
лица единственного числа 
настоящего времени.

 I can Я могу
he can Он может
And not... А не…
he cans
So... Так,…
He can help you Он может вам помочь 
We can eat a fried egg Мы можем съесть жареное 

яйцо.
“can” – interrogative form «can» - вопросительная 

форма
We make an interrogative 
sentence, by putting the verb 
“can” before the subject without 
the auxiliary “do”

Вопросительное предложение 
образуется путем 
постановки глагола «can» 
перед подлежащим без 
вспомогательного глагола 
«do».

You can help me Вы можете мне помочь.
Can you help me? Вы можете мне помочь?
Can you give me…? Вы можете мне дать...?
Can you tell me the way to the 
bus stop?

Вы можете мне сказать, 
как пройти к автобусной 
остановке?

The helping verb "can" – 
negative form

Вспомогательный глагол 
«can» - отрицательная форма

We make a negative sentence, 
by using the word “cannot” 
instead of “can”. without the 
auxiliary "do"

Отрицательное предложение 
образуется заменой 
«can» на «cannot» без 
вспомогательного глагола 
«do».

I cannot do it. Я не могу это сделать.
You can't drive faster. Вы не можете ехать быстрее.
Note: The contracted form of 
the word “cannot” is “can’t”.

Примечание: сокращенной 
формой слова «cannot» 
является «can’t».

Past tense of "can": could Прошедшее время «can»: 
could



The word “could” is the Past 
Tense of the verb “can”. It 
is also used to make polite 
requests in Present Tense and 
Future Tense.

Слово «could» - это форма 
прошедшего времени 
глагола «can». Она также 
используется для выражения 
вежливой просьбы в 
настоящем и будущем 
времени.

I could have a light meal. Я бы легко перекусил.
I could not bring you a cup of 
tea.

Я не смог принести вам чашку 
чая.

Could I have a light meal? Могу ли я легко перекусить?
The phrase "for breakfast" Выражение «for breakfast»
We do not use the indefinite 
articles "a" or "an" before the 
names of meals.

Перед названиями блюд 
неопределенные артикли «a» 
и «an» не используются.

I'll have a sandwich for 
breakfast.

Я буду бутерброд на завтрак.

And not... А не…
for a breakfast
The phrase "having breakfast" Выражение «having 

breakfast»
The word "having" is often 
used together with a noun to 
describe an action.

Слово «having» часто 
используется вместе с 
существительным для 
описания действия.

I'm having breakfast. Я завтракаю.
They're having a sleep Они спят.

Lesson 9 Урок 9 
Vocabulary Словарь
tea time время пить чай
rather скорее
hot горячий
too слишком
too much слишком много
two два
teaspoon чайная ложка
how about? как насчет?
cheese сыр
if если
were были
doughnut пончик
idea идея
another другой



white белый
wine вино
soda сода
water вода
bottle бутылка
grape виноград
lemonade лимонад
can банка
orange апельсин
orange juice апельсиновый сок
lump кусковой
lemon лимон
biscuit печенье
knife нож
fork вилка
plate тарелка
spoon ложка
tooth зуб
toothpick зубочистка
napkin салфетка
just только
a glass of beer бокал пива
cream сливки
begin начинать
beer пиво
chocolate шоколад
pudding пудинг
brandy бренди
strong сильный
drink пить
soft drink безалкогольный напиток
mineral минеральный
sweet сладкий
wine вино
black черный
snack закуска
A short conversation Короткий разговор
TEA TIME ЧАЕПИТИЕ
Would you like a cup of tea? Вы хотите чашку чая?

I'd rather have a hot cup of 
coffee

Я бы предпочел чашку 
горячего кофе.

Will you have milk and sugar? Вам с молоком и сахаром?
Not too much milk, and two 
teaspoons of sugar, please. 

Не слишком много молока 
и две чайные ложки сахара, 
пожалуйста.

How about a piece of cake? Как насчет кусочка пирога?
I'll have some cheese cake Я буду немного чизкейка.
If I were you I would try a 
doughnut

На вашем месте я 
попробовал бы пончик.

Yes, that's a good idea Да, это хорошая идея.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.



I'd like another glass of white 
wine.
I'd like a glass of soda water
I'd like a bottle of grape juice
I'd like a bottle of lemonade
I'd like a can of orange juice
I'll have a cup of tea with two 
lumps of sugar
I'll have a cup of tea with one 
teaspoon of sugar.
I'll have a cup of tea with a slice 
of lemon
I'll have a cup of tea with a 
piece of cake
I'll have a cup of tea with some 
biscuits
Could I have a knife and a fork?
Could I have a plate and a 
spoon?
Could I have toothpicks and 
napkins?
Could I have just a glass of 
beer?
Could I have coffee with 
cream?
I'll begin with some light beer
I'll begin with some apple cake
I'll begin with this chocolate 
pudding
I'll begin with a glass of brandy
I'll begin with a cup of strong 
tea
Where can I get a soft drink?
Where can I get a glass of 
mineral water?
Where can I get a glass of 
sweet wine?
Where can I get a cup of black 
coffee?
Where can I get a snack?
The phrase “I’d rather have” Выражение «I’d rather have»
I'd rather have Я бы предпочел
I'd rather have a glass of water. Я бы предпочел стакан 

воды.
The phrases “too much” and 
“too many”

Выражения «too much» и 
«too many»

too much
We use “too much” to describe 
an uncountable amount.

«Too much» употребляется 
для обозначения бессчетного 
количества.

He drinks too much wine. Он пьет слишком много 
вина.

Not too much milk. Не слишком много молока.
too many
We use “too many” to describe 
a countable amount.

«Too many» употребляется 
для обозначения счетного 
количества.



He ate too many oranges Он съел слишком много 
апельсинов

The phrase “a slice of” Выражение «a slice of»
slice ломтик
a slice of lemon ломтик лимона
a slice of bread ломтик хлеба
I'll have a cup of tea with a slice 
of lemon

Я буду чашку чая с ломтиком 
лимона.

to slice нарезать
Please slice the cheese Пожалуйста, нарежьте сыр.
The word “another” Слово «another»
another 
The word “another” is one 
word, not two (that is, not 
“an other”). We usually use 
this word with count nouns in 
singular form.

«Another» («другой») – это 
одно слово, а не два (то есть 
не «an other»). Оно обычно 
используется с исчисляемыми 
существительными в 
единственном числе.

another glass еще один стакан
Would you like another glass of 
wine?

Вы хотите еще бокал вина?

Lesson 10 Урок 10 
Vocabulary Словарь
room комната
night ночь
single одноместный
double двухместный
vacant свободный
seventh седьмой
floor этаж
forty сорок
may мочь
porter портье
show показывать
better лучше
cheap дешевый
clean чистый
quiet тихий
large большой
private уединенный
bath ванна
bathroom ванная комната
twin двуспальный



bed кровать
twin beds двойная кровать
toilet туалет
shower душ
heating отопление
air-conditioning кондиционирование воздуха
facing c видом на
sea море
balcony балкон
splendid великолепный
view вид
river река
full полный
board питание
full board полный пансион
price цена
thirty тридцать
tax налог
service обслуживание
V.A.T (value added tax) НДС (налог на добавленную 

стоимость)
added добавленный
Sunday воскресенье
extra дополнительный
half board полупансион
until до
Tuesday вторник
at least по крайней мере
fortnight две недели
a few несколько

day день
A short conversation Короткий разговор
AT THE HOTEL В ГОСТИНИЦЕ
I'd like a room for one night Мне нужен номер на одну 

ночь.
Would you like a single room or 
a double one?

Вы хотели бы одноместный 
или двухместный номер?

I'd rather have a single room Я бы предпочел 
одноместный.

We have a vacant room on the 
seventh floor

У нас есть свободный номер 
на седьмом этаже.

How much is it? Сколько он стоит?
One hundred dollars including 
V.A.T.

Сто долларов, включая НДС.

May I see the room? Можно мне посмотреть 
номер?

Yes, of course. The porter will 
show it to you.

Да, конечно. Портье покажет 
его вам.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I'd like a better room
I'd like a cheaper room
I'd like a cleaner room
I'd like a quieter room
I'd like a larger room



Can I have a room with a 
private bathroom?
Can I have a room with twin 
beds?
Can I have a room with toilet 
and shower?
Can I have a room with 
heating?
Can I have a room with air 
conditioning?
We have a vacant room facing 
the sea
We have a vacant room with a 
balcony
We have a room facing the river
We have a vacant room with a 
splendid view.
We have a vacant room with full 
board
The price of the room is thirty 
dollars, including tax
The price of the room is thirty 
dollars, including service
The price of the room is thirty 
dollars, including V.A.T.
The price of the room is thirty 
dollars, including half board
The price of the room is thirty 
dollars, including meals
Do you have a room for Sunday 
night?
Do you have a room for an 
extra night?
Do you have a room until 
Tuesday?
Do you have a room for at least 
a fortnight?
Do you have a room for a few 
days?
The phrase “a double one” Выражение «a double one»
double двухместный
Would you like a single room or 
a double one?

Вы хотели бы одноместный 
номер или двухместный?

Note: We use the word "one" 
in this phrase as a pronoun, 
in order to avoid repeating the 
noun. For example, we say 
"a double one" instead of "a 
double room" or "a single 
room".

Примечание: «one» 
здесь выступает в 
роли местоимения во 
избежание повторения 
существительного. Например, 
говорят: «a double one» 
вместо «a double room» или 
«a single room».

More examples: Еще несколько примеров:
Can you give me a pen? Sorry, 
I don't have one

Вы можете дать мне ручку? К 
сожалению, у меня ее нет.

a double room двухместный номер
a single room одноместный номер
twin beds односпальные кровати
bed and breakfast номер с завтраком
full board полный пансион



half board полупансион
a double bed двуспальная кровать
The preposition “on” Предлог «on»
We have a vacant room on the 
seventh floor

У нас есть свободный номер 
на седьмом этаже.

Note: The preposition in this 
sentence is "on" (and not "in" 
or "at").

Примечание: в этом 
предложении предлог «on» (а 
не «in» или «at»).

The words "great" and "large" Слова «great» и «large»
We use the adjective "large" 
with concrete nouns, and we 
use the adjective "great" with 
abstract nouns.

Прилагательное «large» 
употребляется с конкретными 
существительными, а «great» 
- с абстрактными. 

a large room большая комната
a large hotel большая гостиница
a large hospital большая больница
a large factory крупный завод
a great idea отличная идея
A Great Power великая держава
Can I have a large room? Можно мне большую 

комнату?
That is a great story Это замечательная история
The words “few” and “a few” Слова «few» и «a few»
few немного
We are few Нас мало
a few  несколько
Please give me a few oranges Дайте мне, пожалуйста, 

несколько апельсинов.
Note: We use the words “few” 
and “a few” with count nouns.

Примечание: слова «few» 
и «a few» используются 
с исчисляемыми 
существительными.

The words “till” and “until” Слова «till» и «until»
until до
We use the words “till” and 
“until” when discussing 
time. These words are 
interchangeable.

Слова «till» и «until» 
употребляются 
при обсуждении 
времени и являются 
взаимозаменяемыми.

Do you have a room until 
Tuesday?

У вас есть номер до 
вторника?

Note: The word “until” only has 
one l, while the word “till” has 
two l’s.

Примечание: в слове «until» 
одна l, в то время как в слове 
«till» две l.

Lesson 11 Урок 11 
Vocabulary Словарь



what time? В какое время?
serve подавать
seven семь
A.M. (a.m.) утра
P.M. (p.m.) вечера
twelve двенадцать
six шесть
eight восемь
bar бар
open открывать
midnight полночь
leave уезжать
early рано
tomorrow завтра
wake up будить
o'clock часов
pay платить
bill счет
certainly конечно
find находить
blanket одеяло
pillow подушка
sheet простыня
coat пальто
coat hanger вешалка
carpet ковер
cocktail bar коктейль-бар
lift лифт
lady дама
ladies' room дамский туалет
tap кран
fan вентилятор
light свет
switch выключать
light switch выключатель света
plug вилка
send отправлять
ashtray пепельница
soap мыло
toilet туалет
paper бумага
toilet paper туалетная бумага
napkin салфетка
towel полотенце
manager управляющий
chambermaid горничная
night porter ночной портье
receptionist регистратор
waiter официант
headwaiter метрдотель
A short conversation Короткий разговор
AT THE HOTEL (2) В ГОСТИНИЦЕ (2)
What time do you serve meals? В какое время подают еду?



We serve breakfast from 7 a.m. 
to 9 a.m., lunch from 12 to 2 
and dinner from 6 to 8 p.m..

Завтрак подают с 7 до 9 утра, 
обед с 12 до 2, а ужин с 6 до 
8 вечера.

Is there a bar at the hotel? В гостинице есть бар?
Yes. The bar is open from 8 
p.m. to midnight.

Да. Бар открыт с 8 вечера до 
полуночи.

I'll leave early tomorrow 
morning. Please wake me up at 
six o'clock.

Я уезжаю завтра рано утром. 
Пожалуйста, разбудите меня 
в 6 часов.

Very well. Очень хорошо.

I would like to pay the bill. Я хотел бы оплатить счет.
Certainly. Разумеется.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I can't find another blanket
I can't find another pillow
I can't find another sheet
I can't find another coathanger
I can't find another carpet
Where's the lounge?
Where's the cocktail bar?
Where's the lift?
Where's the restaurant?
Where's the ladies' room?
The airconditioning doesn't 
work. 
The tap doesn't work.
The fan doesn't work.
The light-switch doesn't work.
The plug doesn't work.
Please send me an ashtray
Please send me some soap.
Please send me toilet paper
Please send me a napkin
Please send me a towel.
I'd like to see the manager
I'd like to see the chambermaid.
I'd like to see the night porter
I'd like to see the receptionist
I'd like to see the head waiter
The words “a.m.” and “p.m.” Слова «a.m.» и «p.m.»
The words “a.m.” and “p.m.” 
are acronyms for Latin words:

Слова «a.m.» и «p.m.» – это 
сокращения латинских слов:

a.m. = ante meridiem (before 
midday)

a.m. = ante meridiem (до 
полудня)

p.m. = post meridiem (after 
midday)

p.m. = post meridiem (после 
полудня)

From 6 a.m. to 8 p.m С 6 утра до 8 вечера
Please wake me up at 6 a.m. Пожалуйста, разбудите меня 

в 6 утра.
The word “o’clock” Слово «o’clock»
of the clock = o'clock часов
We only add the word “o’clock” 
to times that are exactly on the 
hour.

Слово «o’clock» добавляется 
только к целым часам.

It's ten o'clock Десять часов.



But... Но…
It's twenty past six Двадцать минут седьмого.
I'll be here at five o'clock. Я буду здесь в пять часов.
Note: We use the preposition 
“at” before the time.

Примечание: предлог «at» 
ставится перед временем.

The phrase “to pay the bill” Выражение «to pay the bill»
to pay the bill оплатить счет

I'll pay the bill tomorrow Я оплачу счет завтра
The words “soap” and 
“ashtray”

Слова «soap» и «ashtray»

Please send me an ashtray and 
some soap.

Пожалуйста, пришлите мне 
пепельницу и немного мыла.

Note: The word “ashtray” is 
a count noun, so we use the 
article “an” before it. The word 
“soap” is a non-count noun, so 
we use the word “some” before 
it, instead of the article “a”.

Примечание: слово 
«ashtray» – исчисляемое 
существительное, поэтому 
перед ним ставится 
артикль «an». Слово 
«soap» - неисчисляемое 
существительное, поэтому 
вместо артикля «a» перед 
ним ставится слово «some».

The words "elevator" and "lift" Слова «elevator» и «lift»
Americans use the word 
"elevator".
The British prefer to use the 
word "lift".

Американцы используют 
слово «elevator».
Британцы предпочитают 
слово «lift».

elevator лифт

lift лифт
Where is the lift (elevator)? Где лифт?
The word “headwaiter” Слово «headwaiter»
headwaiter метрдотель
The word “headwaiter” is a 
compound, composed of two 
words:

«Headwaiter» - сложное 
слово, состоящее из двух 
простых:

head старший
waiter официант
I would like to see the 
headwaiter.

Я хотел бы видеть 
метрдотеля.

More compounds that contain 
the word “head”:

Другие сложные слова, 
которые содержат слово 
«head»:

Headline(s) заголовок
headlight фара
headphones наушники
The word “switch” Слово «switch»
switch (noun) выключатель
light switch выключатель света
safety switch предохранительный 

выключатель
starting switch пусковой выключатель
The light switch doesn't work Выключатель света не 

работает



Lesson 12 Урок 12 

Vocabulary Словарь
greengrocer зеленщик
excellent отличный
as как
as good as всё равно что
as sweet as сладкий, как
honey мед
any любой
pear груша
sorry извините
nice хороший
peach персик
kilo килограмм
almonds миндаль
pick выбирать
out из
pick out отбирать
yourself ты сам/ вы сами
put класть
scales весы
also также
afraid боящийся
don't не
cucumber огурец
ripe спелый
cherry вишня
sour кислый
vinegar уксус
round круглый
light легкий
feather перо
banana банан
green зеленый
beautiful красивый
bag мешок
under под
box коробка
shelf полка
packet пакет
prune чернослив
strawberry клубника



mixture смесь
dry сухой
dried fruit сухофрукты
bunch связка
awfully страшно
terribly ужасно
very очень
so так
extremely чрезвычайно
A short conversation Короткий разговор
AT THE GREENGROCER'S В ОВОЩНОМ МАГАЗИНЕ
I'd like some grapes Я хотел бы немного 

винограда.
We have excellent grapes. 
They're as sweet as honey

У нас отличный виноград. Он 
сладкий, как мед.

Do you have any pears? У вас есть сколько-нибудь 
груш?

No. I'm sorry, but we have 
some nice peaches

Нет, извините, но у нас есть 
немного хороших персиков.

Please, give me two kilos of 
peaches and a kilo of almonds

Дайте мне, пожалуйста, 
два килограмма персиков и 
килограмм миндаля.

You can pick them out yourself 
and put them on the scales

Вы можете сами их выбрать и 
положить на весы.

I'd also like a kilo of onions and 
two kilos of potatoes

Я также хотел бы килограмм 
лука и два килограмма 
картофеля.

I'm afraid we haven't any 
potatoes

Боюсь, у нас совсем нет 
картофеля.

So please give me a kilo of 
cucumbers

Тогда дайте мне, пожалуйста, 
килограмм огурцов.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
It is as sweet as honey
It is as ripe as a cherry
It is as sour as vinegar
It is as round as an apple
It is as light as a feather
We have excellent bananas
We have ripe bananas
We have green bananas
We have beautiful bananas
We have splendid bananas
You can put them on the scales
You can put them in your bag
You can put them under the 
table
You can put them behind the 
box
You can put them on the shelf
I would like this watermelon
I would like a packet of prunes
I would like a box of 
strawberries
I would like a mixture of dried 
fruit



I would like a bunch of bananas
I'm awfully sorry, we don't have 
any juice.
I'm terribly sorry, we don't have 
any juice.
I'm very sorry, we don't have 
any juice.
I'm so sorry, we don't have any 
juice.
I'm extremely sorry, we don't 
have any juice.
The words "some" and "any" Слова «some» и «any»

We use the word "some" before 
non-count nouns to indicate a 
small amount.

Слово «some» употребляется 
перед неисчисляемыми 
существительными для 
обозначения небольшого 
количества. 

some water немного воды
some milk немного молока
some wine немного вина
some vinegar немного уксуса
some money немного денег
some time немного времени
some air немного воздуха
some cheese немного сыра
We can also use the word 
“some” before count nouns in 
plural form.

Слово «some» также 
употребляется перед 
исчисляемыми 
существительными во 
множественном числе.

I'd like some grapes. Я хотел бы немного 
винограда.

We have some nice peaches У нас есть немного хороших 
персиков.

Usually, in interrogative and 
negative sentences, we use the 
word “any” instead of “some”.

Как правило, в 
вопросительных и 
отрицательных предложениях 
вместо «some» используется 
слово «any».

We have some cheese У нас есть немного сыра.
We don't have any cheese У нас совсем нет сыра.
Do you have any cheese? У вас есть сколько-нибудь 

сыра?
 I have some grapes У меня есть немного 

винограда.
I don't have any grapes У меня совсем нет 

винограда.
Do you have any grapes? У вас есть сколько-нибудь 

винограда?
Note: The British prefer the 
following:

Примечание: британцы 
предпочитают следующее:

I haven't any cheese.
Have you any cheese? 
The phrase “I’m afraid” Выражение «I’m afraid»



When we want to express 
regret that we are unable to 
meet a request, we use the 
phrase “I’m afraid”.

Для выражения сожаления 
о невозможности 
удовлетворить запрос 
используется фраза «I’m 
afraid».

I'm afraid we don't have any 
potatoes.

Боюсь, у нас совсем нет 
картофеля.

The phrase "I'd also like" Выражение «I’d also like»
We usually use the word "also" 
before the verb.

Слово «also» обычно 
ставится перед глаголом.

I also want a kilo of onions. Мне также надо килограмм 
лука.

When the main verb is to be, to 
do or to have, we may usually 
use the word “also” after the 
verb.

Когда основной глагол - to 
be, to do or to have, то слово 
«also» обычно употребляется 
после глагола.

I am also a teacher. Я тоже учитель.
He is also a driver Он тоже водитель.
You are also late Вы тоже опоздали.

The form “as… as”
The comparative of equality

Конструкция «as… as»
Степени сравнения равенства

as ...as такой... как
as sweet as honey сладкий, как мед
as ripe as a cherry спелый, как вишня
as sour as vinegar кислый, как уксус
as round as an apple круглый, как яблоко
as light as a feather легкий, как перышко
Note: The words "honey" and 
"vinegar" are non-count nouns, 
so we do not use the article "a" 
before them. The words "apple" 
and "cherry" are count nouns, 
so we use an article before 
them ("a" or "an"): "an apple", 
"a cherry".

Примечание: слова 
«honey» («мед») и «vinegar» 
(«уксус») - неисчисляемые 
существительные, поэтому 
перед ними артикль «a» не 
ставится. Слова «apple» 
(«яблоко») и «cherry» 
(«вишня») - исчисляемые 
существительные и перед 
ними ставится артикль («a» 
или «an»): «an apple», «a 
cherry».

More "as… as" phrases: Еще выражения с «as… as»:
as many as you like так много, как вам нравится
as warm as toast теплый, как тост
as well as а также
as much as столько сколько
as many as столько же сколько
 as far as насколько
 as long as до тех пор пока
as good as все равно, что





Lesson 13 Урок 13
Vocabulary Словарь
buying покупка
wallet бумажник
for you для тебя/ для вас
sort вид
look смотреть
well хорошо

made сделанный
well-made искусно выполненный
leather кожа
big большой
small маленький
won't не будет
present подарок
daughter дочь
purse сумочка
bracelet браслет
ring кольцо
brooch брошь
earring серьга
necklace ожерелье
rosary четки
beads бисер
chain цепь
gold золото
cotton хлопок
real настоящий
silk шелк
real silk натуральный шелк
pure чистый

wool шерсть
pure wool чистая шерсть
linen лён
lighter легче
heavy тяжелый
important важный
more important важнее
expensive дорогой
long длинный
repair ремонтировать



engagement помолвка
engagement ring обручальное кольцо
camera камера
alarm сигнал тревоги
clock часы
alarm clock будильник
wrist запястье
watch часы (карманные, наручные)
wrist watch наручные часы
wedding ring обручальное кольцо
A short conversation Короткий разговор
BUYING A WALLET ПОКУПКА БУМАЖНИКА
What can I do for you? Чем я могу вам помочь?
I want to buy a wallet for my 
husband

Я хочу купить бумажник для 
своего мужа.

What sort of wallet are you 
looking for?

Какой бумажник вы ищете?

A well-made leather one Искусно выполненный 
кожаный.

How about this one? Как насчет этого?
No. It's too big. Do you have a 
smaller one? 

Нет, он слишком большой. У 
вас есть поменьше?

Is this one better? Этот лучше?
Yes. That's what my husband 
likes. I'll take it

Да. Это то, что нравится 
моему мужу. Я его возьму.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Dan won't buy a present for his 
daughter
Dan won't buy a purse for his 
daughter
Dan won't buy a bracelet for his 
daughter
Dan won't buy a wedding-ring 
for his daughter
Dan won't buy a brooch for his 
daughter
What sort of earrings are you 
looking for?
What sort of necklaces are you 
looking for?
What sort of rosaries are you 
looking for?
What sort of beads are you 
looking for?
What sort of chain are you 
looking for?
It's made of gold
It's made of cotton
It's made of real silk
It's made of pure wool
It's made of linen
Do you have a lighter one?
Do you have a heavier one?
Do you have a more important 
one?



Do you have a more expensive 
one?
Do you have a longer one?
How much will it cost to repair 
this engagement ring?
How much will it cost to repair 
this wireless set?
How much will it cost to repair 
this camera?
How much will it cost to repair 
this alarm clock?
How much will it cost to repair 
this wrist watch?
The phrase "look for" Фраза «look for»
look смотреть
When the word "look" is 
followed by a preposition, its 
meaning changes.

Когда за словом «look» 
следует предлог, его значение 
меняется.

look for искать
He is looking for a job. Он ищет работу.
More phrases: Еще фразы:
look after присматривать за
look forward ожидать
look through просматривать
look over осматривать
Contractions Сокращения
will not= won't
The adverb "well" Наречие «well»
We use the adverb "well" with 
the past participle of verbs 
(passive form).

Наречие well («хорошо») 
употребляется со 
страдательными причастиями 
прошедшего времени.

Phrases with the adverb "well": Фразы с наречием «well»:
well made хорошо сделанный
well done молодец
well dressed хорошо одетый
well educated хорошо образованный
well known хорошо известный
well paid хорошо оплачиваемый
well behaved хорошо ведущий себя
well spoken умеющий хорошо говорить
well cooked хорошо приготовленный
well fed хорошо откормленный
The phrase "made of gold" Фраза «made of gold»
Words that represent materials 
are non-count nouns; therefore, 
they do not have a plural form, 
and we do not use an indefinite 
article before them.

Слова, обозначающие 
жидкости и материалы 
- неисчисляемые 
существительные, 
поэтому у них нет формы 
множественного числа, и 
неопределенный артикль 
перед ними не ставится.

gold золото
cotton хлопок
silk шелк
wood дерево
leather кожа



linen лён
air воздух
silver серебро
Non-count nouns that represent 
liquids include the following:

Неисчисляемые 
существительные, 
обозначающие жидкости, 
включают следующие:

honey мёд
vinegar уксус
juice сок
milk молоко
water вода
beer пиво
wine вино
oil масло
The words "make" and "made" Слова «make» и «made»
make делать
made сделанный
The word "made" is the Past 
Tense of the word "make".

Слово «made» - это 
прошедшее время от слова 
«make».

The phrase "a smaller one" Фраза «a smaller one»
We use the word "one" to avoid 
repeating the noun.

Слово «one» используется 
во избежание повтора 
существительного.

He has two suits: a woolen one 
and a cotton one

У него есть два костюма: 
шерстяной и хлопковый.

Lesson 14 Урок 14
Vocabulary Словарь
butcher мясник
at the butcher's в мясном магазине
mince рубить
minced meat рубленое мясо
rib ребро
steak порционный кусок мяса
wing крыло
giblets потроха
joint мясной отруб
OK ладно
shoulder плечо
roasting жарка
stewing тушение
sausage колбаса



half a kilo полкило
frankfurter сосиска
three hundred триста
gram грамм
salami салями
four hundred четыреста
gravy подливка
ground молотый
ground meat мясной фарш
let me позвольте мне
let me have дайте мне
send отправлять
weigh взвешивать
brain мозг
dripping капающий
heart сердце
foot нога
jelly студень
tripe требуха
kind вид
duck утка
turkey индейка
beef говядина
veal телятина
ball мяч
meatball фрикаделька
lungs легкие
cutlets котлеты
hot dog хот-дог
whole целый
whole piece весь кусок
mutton баранина
fillet филе
A short conversation Короткий разговор
AT THE BUTCHER'S В МЯСНОМ МАГАЗИНЕ

I'd like some minced meat Мне нужно немного рубленого 
мяса.

How much would you like? Сколько вам нужно?
Two kilos please, and give 
me a kilo of rib steak, a kilo 
of chicken wings and some 
giblets.

Два килограмма, пожалуйста, 
и еще кило антрекота, кило 
куриных крылышек и немного 
потрохов.

What about a joint of lamb? Как насчет куска баранины?
O.K. I'll take this piece of 
shoulder

Ладно, я возьму этот кусок 
плеча.

For roasting or stewing? Для жарки или тушения?
I'll take a kilo for roasting and 
two kilos for stewing

Я возьму кило для жарки и 
два кило для тушения.

How about some sausages? Как насчет колбасы?
Please give me half a kilo of 
frankfurters and 300 grams of 
salami

Пожалуйста, дайте мне 
полкило сосисок и 300 грамм 
салями.

Exercise Упражнение



Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Please give me half a kilo of 
ground meat.
Let me have half a kilo of 
ground meat.
Send me half a kilo of ground 
meat.
He weighs half a kilo of ground 
meat.
Get me half a kilo of ground 
meat.
What kind of beef do you have?
What kind of veal do you have?
What kind of meat do you 
have?
The words "beef", "veal", and 
"mutton"

Слова «beef», «veal» и 
«mutton»

In some cases, the name of the 
animal is not the same name 
of the meat if provides. In any 
case, the names for types of 
meat are uncountable, so we 
never use the indefinite article 
before a type of meat.

В некоторых случаях 
название животного не 
совпадает с названием 
его мяса. В любом случае, 
названия видов мяса нельзя 
посчитать, так что перед 
ними никогда не используется 
неопределенный артикль.

Animal names (count nouns) Названия животных 
(исчисляемые 
существительные)

a cow корова
a calf теленок
a sheep овца
Meat names (non-count nouns) Названия мяса 

(неисчисляемые 
существительные)

beef говядина
veal телятина
mutton баранина
The words "hear" and "listen" Разница между «hear» и 

«listen»
hear слышать

listen слушать
I'm listening to the radio, but I 
can also hear the cars in the 
street

Я слушаю радио, но я также 
могу слышать автомобили на 
улице.

The phrase "let me" Фраза «let me»
let позволять
Let me come in Разрешите войти
And not... И не…
let me to come in
Remember: We do not use the 
word "to" after "let".

Помните: предлог «to» после 
«let» не используется.



Lesson 15 Урок 15
Vocabulary Словарь
clothing одежда

dress платье
seventy семьдесят
really действительно
different разный
anything что-нибудь
quality качество
range диапазон
thinking мышление
twenty five двадцать пять
fifty пятьдесят
smart Умный
enough достаточно
thirty five тридцать пять
receipt чек
jeans джинсы
stockings чулки
underpants трусы
shorts шорты
gloves перчатки
elegant элегантный
jacket куртка
inexpensive недорогой
scarf шарф
shirt рубашка
sleeve рукав
fur мех
fur coat шуба
grey серый
belt ремень
skirt юбка
tight узкий
short короткий
baggy мешковатый
dark темный
alter перешивать
blazer блейзер
return возвращать
deliver доставлять
measure измерять
suit костюм
hand рука
hand-made ручной работы
fashion мода
old-fashioned старомодный
fit подходить
solid сплошной



color цвет
solid color сплошной цвет
stripe полоса
A short conversation Короткий разговор
AT THE CLOTHING SHOP В МАГАЗИНЕ ОДЕЖДЫ
What's the price of this dress? Сколько стоит это платье?
Seventy dollars. Семьдесят долларов.
It's more than I really wanted to 
pay.

Это больше той суммы, 
которую я ожидал.

We have different qualities. У нас есть вещи разного 
качества.

Do you have anything cheaper? У вас есть что-нибудь 
дешевле?

What price range were you 
thinking of?

На какой ценовой диапазон 
вы рассчитывали?

Oh, something between twenty-
five and fifty dollars. 

Ой, что-то от двадцати пяти 
до пятидесяти долларов.

How do you like this one? It's 
smart.

Как вам нравится это? Оно 
нарядное.

That's good enough. Это вполне подойдет.
How much is it? Сколько оно стоит?
Thirty-five dollars. Тридцать пять долларов.
May I have a receipt, please? Могу ли я получить чек, 

пожалуйста?
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I'd like a pair of jeans
I'd like a pair of stockings
I'd like a pair of underpants.
I'd like a pair of shorts
I'd like a pair of gloves
I'll show you an elegant jacket.
I'll show you an inexpensive 
scarf
I'll show you a shirt with sleeves
I'll show you a fur coat
I'll show you a grey belt
This skirt is too expensive for 
me
This skirt is too tight for me.
This skirt is too short for me.
This skirt is too baggy for me.
This skirt is too dark for me.
I want to alter this blazer 
I want to return this blazer
I want to deliver this blazer
I want to measure this blazer
I want to repair this blazer
This suit is hand-made
This suit is old-fashioned.
This suit doesn't fit me.
This suit is in a solid color
This suit is with stripes

The word "enough" Слово «enough»
enough достаточно



It's good enough Довольно хорошо
It's not enough Недостаточно
There is enough water for 
everybody

Воды хватит на всех.

The word "measure" Слово «measure»
measure измерять
Can you measure this room? Вы можете измерить эту 

комнату?
The tailor measures me for a 
suit

Портной снимает с меня 
мерки для костюма.

The word "fit" Слово «fit»
fit подходить
Do they fit you? Они вам подходят?
This suit doesn't fit me Этот костюм мне не подходит.
The words "something" and 
"anything"

Слова «something» и 
«anything»

anything что-нибудь, ничего

something что-то
Note: We use the word 
"something" in positive 
sentences, while we use the 
word "anything" in negative 
and interrogative sentences.

Примечание: в 
утвердительных 
предложениях употребляется 
слово «something», 
а в отрицательных и 
вопросительных - «anything».

There is something in the box В коробке что-то есть.
Is there anything in the box? В коробке что-нибудь есть?
There isn't anything in the box. В коробке ничего нет.
The word "receipt" Слово «receipt»
receipt квитанция 
May I have a receipt? Могу ли я получить 

квитанцию?
I signed the receipt Я подписал квитанцию.
The word "inexpensive" Слово «inexpensive»
expensive дорогой
inexpensive недорогой
This skirt is expensive. Эта юбка дорогая.
I'll show you an inexpensive 
skirt.

Я покажу вам недорогую 
юбку.

The prefix "in" Приставка «in»
The prefix "in" means "not" or 
"without".

Приставка «in» означает «не» 
или «без».

indirect непрямой
intolerance нетерпимость
inability неспособность
indefinite неопределенный
inexperience неопытность



Lesson 16 Урок 16
Vocabulary Словарь
shoe обувь
shoe shop обувной магазин
pair of shoes пара обуви
grey shoes серая обувь
every каждый
every day каждый день
wear носить
size размер
try on примерять
latest последний
style стиль
latest style последняя мода
little небольшой
a little немного
a little tight немного тесный
get получать
comfortable удобный
wrap заворачивать
wrap up упаковывать
sandal сандалия
boot ботинок
slipper тапочка
sneaker теннисная туфля
boots ботинки
narrow узкий
a bit чуть-чуть
wide широкий
wider шире
short короткий
bit малость

loose свободный
suede замша
evening вечер
white белый
ballet балет
sole подошва
rubber резиновый
high высокий
heel каблук
high heel высокий каблук
shoelaces шнурки
low низкий
low heel низкий каблук
nearby поблизости
shoemaker сапожник
pastry кондитерские изделия
antique антикварный



antique shop антикварный магазин
souvenir сувенир
A short conversation Короткий разговор
IN THE SHOE SHOP В ОБУВНОМ МАГАЗИНЕ
I'd like a pair of grey shoes for 
everyday wear

Мне нужна пара серой обуви 
для повседневной носки.

What size do you wear? Какой размер вы носите?
I take size 38. Я беру 38-й.
Would you like to try this pair 
on? It's the latest style.

Хотите примерить эту пару? 
Это последний писк моды.

They are a little tight. Они немного тесные.
I'll get you a larger size. This 
pair will fit you better.

Я принесу вам пару большего 
размера. Она подойдет вам 
лучше.

Yes, these shoes are 
comfortable. 

Да, эта обувь удобная.

I'll wrap up your old shoes. Я заверну вашу старую обувь.
Thank you very much. Большое спасибо.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
There is a pair of sandals on 
the shelf
There is a pair of boots on the 
shelf
There is a pair of slippers on 
the shelf
There is a pair of sneakers on 
the shelf
There is a pair of boots on the 
shelf
This pair is a little tight
This pair is too narrow
This pair is a bit wide.
This pair is too short.
This pair is a bit loose
Could you show me a pair of 
suede shoes?
Could you show me a pair of 
evening shoes?
Could you show me a pair of 
flat shoes?
Could you show me a pair of 
white shoes?
Could you show me a pair of 
ballet shoes?
Do you have shoes with leather 
soles?
Do you have shoes with rubber 
soles?
Do you have shoes with high 
heels?
Do you have shoes with black 
shoelaces?
Do you have shoes with low 
heels?
Is there a shoemaker nearby?
Is there a pastry shop nearby?



Is there an antique shop 
nearby?
Is there a souvenir shop 
nearby?
The word "wear" Слово «wear»
wear носить
What size do you wear? Какой размер вы носите?
I wear a long coat. Я ношу длинное пальто.
She wears a new hat Она носит новую шляпу.
We wear brown shoes Мы носим коричневую обувь.
They wear black shoelaces Они носят черные шнурки.
The phrase "try on" Фраза «try on»
(to) try on примерять
Would you mind trying these 
on?

Не могли бы вы их 
примерить?

I want to try these shoes on Я хочу примерить эти туфли.
The phrase "every day" Фраза «every day»

Note: The phrase "every day" 
is composed of two separate 
words, in contrast to the word 
"everybody", which is one 
word.

Примечание: фраза «every 
day» («каждый день») 
состоит из двух отдельных 
слов, в отличие от слова 
«everybody» («все»), которое 
является одним словом.

The phrase "latest style" Фраза «latest style»
latest последний
Have you heard the latest 
news?

Вы слышали последние 
новости?

This is the latest style Это последний писк моды.
The word "size" Слово «size»
size размер
What size do you wear? Какой размер вы носите?
Note: Instead of "I wear size 
42", we can say "I take size 42" 
or "I'm size 42".

Примечание: вместо «I 
wear size 42» («я ношу 42-й 
размер») можно сказать: «I 
take size 42» («Я беру 42-й 
размер») или «I’m size 42» 
(«У меня 42-й размер»).

The phrase "a bit" Фраза «a bit»
a bit чуть-чуть

a bit too wide немного широкий
 a bit too loose немного свободный
a bit too small немного мал

Lesson 17 Урок 17
Vocabulary Словарь



book книга
psychology психология
stock запас
in stock в наличии
moment момент
at the moment в данный момент
several несколько
title название
author автор
publisher издатель
soon скоро
how soon? как скоро?
them их
complete полный
works собрание сочинений
complete works полное собрание сочинений
deposit задаток
writer писатель
color цвет
paper бумага
paperback книга в мягкой обложке
pamphlet брошюра
booklet буклет
pocket карман
dictionary словарь
cookery book поваренная книга
text book учебник
must должен
adventure приключение
agriculture сельское хозяйство
children дети
geography география
tourist турист
guide гид
tourist guide путеводитель
history история
detective детектив
story рассказ
detective story детективный рассказ
love любовь
ghost призрак
novel роман
cover обложка
hard cover твердый переплет
newsagent газетный киоскер
newsstand газетный киоск
Protestant протестант
church церковь
Protestant Church протестантская церковь
A short conversation Короткий разговор
AT THE BOOK SHOP В КНИЖНОМ МАГАЗИНЕ
Do you have any books on 
psychology?

У вас есть какие-нибудь книги 
по психологии?



No, I'm afraid, we don't have 
any in stock at the moment. 

Нет, боюсь, у нас их нет в 
наличии на данный момент.

Can you order several books 
for me?

Вы можете заказать 
несколько книг для меня?

Certainly. Please give me the 
titles of the books, the authors 
and the publishers. 

Конечно. Пожалуйста, 
назовите мне книги, авторов и 
издателей.

How soon will you get them? Как скоро вы их получите?
In about a week. Примерно через неделю.
O.K. Please order ''The 
Complete Works of Sigmund 
Freud'' for me. 

Хорошо. Пожалуйста, 
закажите для меня ''Полное 
собрание сочинений 
Зигмунда Фрейда''.  

I'll have to ask you to pay a 
small deposit on it.

Мне придется попросить вас 
внести за него небольшой 
задаток.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Do you know the title of the 
book?
Do you know the writer of the 
book?
Do you know the publisher of 
the book?
Do you know the price of the 
book?
Do you know the color of the 
book?
You will find paperbacks on the 
shelf
You will find pamphlets and 
booklets on the shelf
You will find pocket dictionaries 
on the shelf
You will find cookery books on 
the shelf
You will find textbooks on the 
shelf
You must buy adventure books
You must buy agricultural books
You must buy children's books
You must buy geography books
You must buy tourist guide 
books
Do you have any books on 
history?
Do you have any detective 
stories?
Do you have any love stories?
Do you have any ghost stories 
and novels?
Do you have any hard cover 
books?
Where is the nearest 
bookshop?
Where is the nearest 
newsagent?



Where is the nearest 
newsstand?
Where is the nearest Protestant 
Church?
The words "must" and "have 
to"

Слова «must» и «have to»

When the verb "have" is 
followed by the word "to", it 
means "must".

Когда за глаголом «have» 
следует предлог «to», он 
означает «must» («должен»).

I have to go home. Я должен идти домой.
I have to stay in bed. Я должен оставаться в 

постели.
I have to stop smoking Я должен бросить курить.
I am tired, I must go home. Я устал, мне пора домой.
I'm hungry, I must eat 
something.

Я голоден, я должен что-
нибудь съесть.

And not... И не…(Заметим, что 
предлог «to» после «must» 
отсутствует.)

I must to eat 
Note: The verb "must" is 
similar to "can" and "may" 
in not having an "s" in the 
third person singular of the 
Present tense. It is never used 
in the past tense, only in the 
present and the future.  Just 
like "can" and "may" it is not 
accompanied by the auxiliary 
"to" 

Примечание: Так же как 
«can» и «may», глагол 
«must» не имеет окончания 
«s» в 3-м лице единственного 
числа настоящего времени и 
не сопровождается «to». Он 
никогда не используется в 
прошедшем времени, только 
в настоящем и будущем. 

When we add the word "not" 
after "must", the meaning of the 
sentence changes. The phrase 
"must not" means "not allowed 
to".

При добавлении слова «not» 
к «must» смысл предложения 
меняется. Фраза «must not» 
означает «нельзя».

He must not go home Ему нельзя идти домой.
Contracted form Сокращенная форма

must not = mustn't
You mustn't get out of bed Вы не должны вставать с 

постели.
You mustn't drink cold water Вам нельзя пить холодную 

воду.
The word "about" Слово «about»
Depending on the context, the 
preposition "about" may mean:
1. approximately, more or less, 
around
2. related to, on the subject of

В зависимости от контекста, 
предлог «about» («о») может 
означать:  
1. приблизительно, более или 
менее, около  
2. связанный с, на тему

In about a week Примерно через неделю
He is about 10 years old. Ему около 10 лет.
When we use "about" to mean 
"relating to", the word appears 
usually after a noun.

В значении «касающийся» 
слово «about» обычно 
ставится после 
существительного.

I read a book about Great 
Britain.

Я читал книгу о 
Великобритании.



The word "work" Слово «work»

The word "work" can mean 
many things, such as labor or a 
profession.
When we use this word in the 
plural form ("works"), it means 
"writings" or "creations".

Слово «work» («работа») 
имеет много значений, 
например, труд или 
профессия.  
В форме множественного 
числа («works») оно означает 
«писания» или «творения».

Works of Freud Работы Фрейда

Lesson 18 Урок 18
Vocabulary Словарь
laundry прачечная
washed стиранный
blouse блузка
press (iron) утюг
stain пятно
sweater свитер
get off убрать
try one's best делать все от себя зависящее
pants брюки
torn разорванный
invisible невидимый
mending починка
invisible mending художественная штопка
even даже
be быть
able в состоянии
to be able быть в состоянии
tell отличать
button пуговица
missing отсутствующий
sew шить
sure конечно
always всегда
mend штопать
tear разрыв
handkerchief носовой платок
sock носок
underwear нижнее белье
pyjamas пижама
rinse полоскать



dry-clean подвергать химической чистке
iron гладить
stitch строчить
brush чистить щеткой
replace заменять
zipper молния
turn up появляться
hem кромка
remove удалять
lengthen удлинять
apron фартук
jumper джемпер
vest жилет
collar воротник
pullover пуловер
overcoat мужское пальто
sleeve рукав
uniform униформа
cardigan кардиган
raincoat плащ
A short conversation Короткий разговор
AT THE LAUNDRY В ПРАЧЕЧНОЙ
I'd like to have these clothes 
washed.

Мне нужно постирать эту 
одежду.

Certainly Конечно
This blouse needs only to be 
pressed.

Это блузку нужно только 
погладить.

There's a stain on this sweater. 
Can you get it off? 

На этом свитере пятно. Вы 
можете  его убрать?

We'll try our best. Мы сделаем все от нас 
зависящее.

My pants are torn. Can you do 
invisible mending? 

Мои штаны порваны. 
Вы можете сделать 
художественную штопку?

Yes, and you won't even be 
able to tell. 

Да, и вы даже не заметите 
разницу.

There is a button missing here. 
Can you sew it on? 

Здесь нет пуговицы. Вы 
можете ее пришить?

Sure. We always mend tears 
and sew buttons on.

Конечно. Мы всегда 
заштопываем дырки и 
пришиваем пуговицы.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I'd like to have these clothes 
washed
I'd like to have these socks 
washed
I'd like to have these 
underclothes (= underwear) 
washed
I'd like to have these pyjamas 
washed
May I have these clothes 
rinsed?
May I have these clothes dry 
cleaned?



May I have these clothes 
ironed?
May I have these clothes 
stitched?
May I have these clothes 
brushed?
I'd like to replace this zipper.
I'd like to turn up the hem
I'd like to sew this button on
I'd like to mend this tear
I'd like to lengthen this apron
There's a stain on my jumper
There's a stain on my tie
There's a stain on my collar
There's a stain on my pullover
There's a stain on my overcoat
There's a button missing on this 
costume
There's a button missing on this 
sleeve
There's a button missing on this 
uniform
There's a button missing on this 
cardigan

There's a button missing on this 
raincoat
The phrase "to be washed" Фраза «to be washed»
to be washed для стирки
I'd like these socks to be 
washed.

Эти носки надо постирать.

The phrase "to be pressed" Фраза «to be pressed»
to be pressed для глажки
press гладить
to press clothes гладить вещи
This suit needs to be pressed Этот костюм надо погладить.
More examples of adjectives 
derived from verbs.

Еще примеры 
прилагательных, 
образованных от глаголов.

Tear > torn рвать > рваный
Wash > washed стирать > стиранный
Iron > ironed гладить > глаженный
Brush > brushed чистить > очищенный
Stitch > stitched строчить > простроченный
Rinse > rinsed полоскать > прополосканный
The word "Pajamas" Слово «pajamas»
Pajamas пижама
The word "always" Слово «always»

We use the adverb "always" 
before the verb.

Наречие «always» («всегда») 
ставится перед глаголом.

We always mend tears Мы всегда штопаем дырки.
I always sew buttons on. Я всегда пришиваю пуговицы.
The verb "need" Глагол «need»
need нуждаться
You need a good holiday Вам нужен хороший отпуск.



This blouse needs to be 
pressed

Эту блузку нужно погладить.

You need to call a doctor Вам нужно вызвать врача.
The word "lengthen" Слово «lengthen»
lengthen удлинять
length длина 
I'd like to lengthen this apron. Я хотел бы удлинить этот 

фартук.
The words "blouse" and "shirt" Слова «blouse» и «shirt»
Both of these words mean the 
same thing; however, a "shirt" 
is usually worn by a man, and 
a "blouse" is usually worn by a 
woman.

Оба эти слова означают 
одно и то же, однако, 
«shirt» («рубашку») обычно 
носят мужчины, а «blouse» 
(«блузку») - женщины.

shirt рубашка

blouse блузка



Lesson 19 Урок 19
Vocabulary Словарь
hairdresser парикмахер
haircut стрижка
hair волосы
cut стричь
short короткий
trim подравнивать
shampoo шампунь
never никогда
use использовать
plain обычный
on which на котором
side сторона
part (one's hair) разделять на пробор
straighten выпрямлять
part пробор
front передняя сторона
back задняя сторона
top макушка
center центр
sideburns баки
color цвет
dye красить
blond блондин
nail ноготь
face лицо
shampoo (v) мыть голову
sprayed распылённый
blow обдувать
blow-dry сушить волосы феном
streaks мелирование
curled завитой
style стилизовать
hairstyle прическа
highlights высветленные пряди волос
A short conversation Короткий диалог
AT THE HAIRDRESSER'S В ПАРИКМАХЕРСКОЙ
I need a haircut Мне нужна стрижка.
Do you want your hair cut 
short?

Вы хотите коротко 
подстричься?



No. Just trim my hair Нет, просто подравнять 
волосы.

Would you like me to shampoo 
your hair?

Вам помыть голову?

Yes, please Да, пожалуйста.
On which side do you part your 
hair?

На какую сторону вы 
зачёсываете волосы?

On the right На правую.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I'd like it short on the sides
I'd like it short in the front
I'd like it short at the back
I'd like it short on the top
I'd like you to color my hair
I'd like you to add highlights to 
my hair
I'd like you to blow-dry my hair
Would you like your hair 
shampooed?
Would you like your hair 
sprayed?
Would you like your hair blow-
dried?
I'd like you to add some streaks 
to my hair 
I'd like my hair straightened
I'd like my hair curled
The phrase "at the 
hairdresser"

Фраза “at the hairdresser”

I met my son at the hairdresser Я встретила своего сына в 
парикмахерской.

The word "shampoo" Слово "shampoo"
shampoo шампунь
to shampoo мыть голову шампунем
The word "part" Слово “part”
to part разделять
to part the hair делать пробор
The word "straighten" Слово “straighten”
straighten выпрямлять
straight  прямой
The word "never" Слово “never”
never никогда
I never part my hair Я никогда не делаю пробор в 

волосах.
The word "hair" Слово “hair”
The word "hair" is usually a 
non-count noun.

Существительное «hair" 
("волосы"), как правило, 
неисчисляемое.

She has black hair У нее черные волосы.
However, when discussing 
individual strands of hair, the 
word "hair" is a count noun, 
and we add an s to make the 
plural form.

Тем не менее, когда речь 
идет об отдельных прядях 
волос, существительное 
«hair» исчисляемое и для 
образования множественного 
числа к нему добавляется –s.

I have two hairs on my face. У меня две пряди на лице.



Lesson 20 Урок 20
Vocabulary Словарь

garage автосервис
tank бак
nearly почти
empty пустой
fill заполнять
check проверять
radiator радиатор
all right в порядке
tire шина
right верно
order порядок
in order в порядке
spare запасной
wheel колесо
flat tire спущенная шина
hurry спешка
fix исправлять
quickly быстро
electrical электрический
system система
speedometer спидометр
gear передача
horn сигнал
battery аккумулятор
brake тормоз
starter стартёр
fuel топливо
pump насос
ignition зажигание
pedal педаль
gear box коробка передач
neutral нейтральный
second второй
headlights фары
taillights задние фары
engine двигатель
over сверх
overheat перегревать
badly плохо



leaking утечка
vibrating вибрирующий
look смотреть
bumper бампер
exhaust system выхлопная система
fender брызговик
filter фильтр
air filter воздушный фильтр
shift переключать передачу
A short conversation Короткий диалог
AT THE GARAGE В АВТОСЕРВИСЕ
My tank is nearly empty. Please 
fill it up.

Мой бак почти пуст. 
Пожалуйста, заполните его.

Certainly, Sir. Would you like to 
check the water in the radiator?

Конечно, сэр. Вам нужно 
проверить уровень воды в 
радиаторе?

Yes, please. Да, пожалуйста.
The radiator is all right but you 
do need some oil.

С радиатором все в порядке, 
но вам нужно немного масла.

Would you check my tires? Вы проверите мои шины?
Right Sir. Your tires are in order, 
but your spare wheel is flat.

Вы правы, сэр. Ваши шины 
в порядке, но у вас спустило 
запасное колесо.

I'm in a hurry. Could you fix it 
quickly?

Я спешу. Не могли бы вы 
исправить это по-быстрому?

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Can you repair the electrical 
system?
Can you repair the 
speedometer?
Can you repair the gears?
Can you repair the horn?
Can you replace the battery?
I think there's something wrong 
with the brakes
I think there's something wrong 
with the clutch
I think there's something wrong 
with the starter
I think there's something wrong 
with the fuel pump
I think there's something wrong 
with the ignition
Put the spare back
Shift into neutral
Shift into second gear
Turn the headlights on
Turn the taillights on
The engine is over-heated
The engine is leaking
The engine is vibrating
I'll take a look at the bumper 
right away
I'll take a look at the exhaust 
system right away



I'll take a look at the fender right 
away
I'll take a look at the air filter 
right away
I'll take a look at the engine 
right away
The word "nearly" Слово “nearly”
nearly почти
near близко
The garage is quite near Автосервис находится совсем 

рядом.
My tank is nearly empty. Мой бак почти пуст.
Note: We don't use the word 
"nearly" with negative words 
such as "never". It is incorrect 
to say "I nearly never". 

Примечание: слово «nearly» 
не употребляется с такими 
отрицательными словами 
как «никогда». Неправильно 
говорить: «I nearly never".

In negative sentences, we 
replace "never" with "almost". 

В отрицательных 
предложениях «nearly» 
заменяется на «almost".

I almost never work at night. Я почти никогда не работаю 
ночью.

We can also say...
Также можно сказать...

I hardly ever work at night.
I have got almost no money. У меня почти нет денег.

But we can’t say...
Но нельзя сказать...

I have got nearly no money
The word "all right" Выражение “all right”
alright все в порядке
Are you feeling alright? С вами все в порядке?
The radiator is all right С радиатором все в порядке.
Although this expression is 
sometimes written in one 
word "alright", the correct 
and recommended form is "all 
right", in two separate words.

Хотя это выражение иногда 
пишется одним словом 
«alright», правильной и 
рекомендуемой формой 
является «all right» из двух 
отдельных слов.

The word "tire" Слово “tire”
tire шина
The British use the spelling 
"tyre".

Британцы пишут "tyre".

You have a flat tyre У вас спустило колесо.
The word "fuel" Слово “fuel”
fuel топливо
For motor vehicles, Americans 
prefer the use of gas or 
gasoline, while the British use 
the word petrol.

Топливо для автотранспорта 
американцы называют «gas» 
или «gasoline», британцы – 
«petrol».

Add fuel to the fire Подливать масла в огонь
The phrase "in a hurry" Фраза “in a hurry”
hurry спешить
in a hurry в спешке
I'm in a hurry. Я спешу
More phrases with the 
preposition "in":

Еще фразы с предлогом «in»:

in general в общем



in order в порядке
in order to для того, чтобы
in the end в конце концов
in fact на самом деле
The opposite of the phrase 
"in order" is "out of order", 
which means "not OK" or "not 
working".

Противоположностью фразы 
«in order» является «out of 
order" ("не в порядке") или 
"сломанный".

The word "second" Слово “second”
second второй
into second на вторую
Shift into second gear Переход на вторую передачу

Lesson 21 Урок 21
Vocabulary Словарь
leaving оставление
telephone телефон
message сообщение
telephone message телефонное сообщение
email электронное письмо
speak говорить
secretary секретарь
call (v) вызывать
call (n) вызов
take a message принять сообщение
ask просить
ring звонить
when когда
come in входить
who кто
name имя
phone телефон
let разрешать
him его, ему
let know сообщать
come back возвращаться
contact связаться
phone телефонный
Monday понедельник
drop
line строка
drop a line черкнуть
before до



leave оставлять
get back возвращаться
make совершать
phone call телефонный звонок
distance расстояние
long distance call междугородный вызов
person человек
collect оплаченный
answer отвечать
busy занятый
wrong неправильный
wrong number ошибочный номер
out вне
order строй
out of order вышедший из строя
cut off прерывать
I was cut off Меня прервали.
for me для меня
loud громкий
again снова
look up (v) искать
look up (v) поиск
A short conversation Короткий диалог
LEAVING A TELEPHONE 
MESSAGE

ОСТАВЛЕНИЕ 
ТЕЛЕФОННОГО 
СООБЩЕНИЯ

Am I speaking to Mr. Smith's 
secretary?

Я говорю с секретарем 
господина Смита?

Yes, what can I do for you? Да, что я могу для вас 
сделать?

I'm calling from New York. 
I'd like to speak to Mr. Smith 
please. 

Я звоню из Нью-Йорка. Я 
хотел бы поговорить с г-ном 
Смитом, пожалуйста.

I'm sorry. Mr. Smith isn't in 
at the moment. Can I take a 
message? 

Мне очень жаль. Г-н Смит 
отсутствует в настоящий 
момент. Что-нибудь ему 
передать?

Would you ask him to call me 
when he comes in?

Вы сможете попросить его 
позвонить мне, когда он 
придет?

Yes certainly. Who's speaking? Да, конечно. С кем я 
разговариваю?

My name is Dan Brown, and my 
phone number is 555-1234. 

Меня зовут Дэн Браун, и мой 
номер телефона 555-1234.

O.K. I'll let him know when he 
comes back.

Хорошо, я дам ему знать, 
когда он вернется.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Please ask him to call me back
Please ask him to call me 
tomorrow.
Please ask him to contact me
Please ask him to phone me on 
Monday
Please ask him to drop me a 
line
Please ask him to email me.



I'll call you as soon as he 
comes back
I'll call you as soon as I can
I'll call you when he comes in
I'll call you before he leaves
I'll call you when he gets back
The line is busy
There's no answer
I'm sorry, you have the wrong 
number
The phone is out of order
I'm sorry, I was cut off
Can you speak louder please?
The word "busy" Слово “busy"
busy занятый
The line is busy. Линия занята.
The possessive form 
[Contracted possessive form]

Притяжательная 
форма [сокращенная 
притяжательная форма]

The  secretary of Mr. Smith.= 
Mr. Smith's secretary
The words "call" and "calling" Слова “call” и “calling”
to call звонить
The noun "call" has many 
meanings: a short visit, a 
conversation, a request, an 
invitation, and more.

Существительное «call» 
имеет много значений: 
короткий визит, разговор, 
запрос, приглашение и 
многие другие.

private call персональный вызов
business call бизнес-вызов
The verb "make" Глагол “make”
to make делать 
to make a phone call делать телефонный звонок
to make friends подружиться
Besides its use as an auxiliary, 
the verb to do can be the main 
verb in the sentence. In that 
case, it has many meanings: to 
make, prepare, and more.

Глагол to do может выступать 
в предложении не только 
в роли вспомогательного, 
но и основного глагола 
со множеством значений: 
делать, подготавливать и 
многими другими.

I do my homework Я делаю домашнее задание.
More phrases with the verb 
"do":

Еще фразы с глаголом "do":

to do one's hair причесываться
to do without обходиться без
to do one's best делать всё возможное
that will do сойдёт
The phrase "on the telephone" Фраза "on the telephone"
on the telephone по телефону
He talked to me on the 
telephone

Он говорил со мной по 
телефону.

The phrases "come in" and 
"come back"

Фразы “come in” и “come 
back”

to come приходить
come in входить
come back возвращаться



When the verb "come" is 
followed by a preposition, its 
meaning changes:

Когда за глаголом «come» 
следует предлог, его значение 
меняется.

to come across случайно встретиться
to come on наталкиваться
to come over приезжать
to come to приходить к
to come up подходить
to come upon предъявлять требование

Lesson 22 Урок 22
Vocabulary Словарь
mail (v) отправлять по почте
mail (n) почта
letter письмо
Great Britain Великобритания
by по
by postal mail по почте
airmail авиапочта
surface поверхность
surface mail сухопутная почта
Is that all? Это все?
registered заказной
registered mail заказная почта
stamp марка
to send registered mail отправить заказное письмо
postal почтовый
money деньги
order заказ
money order денежный перевод
package посылка
phone book телефонная книга
catalog каталог
British британский
area регион
code код
counter окно
mailbox почтовый ящик
information информация
information office информационное бюро
form бланк
send посылать
sea море



overseas за границей
renewal обновление
driving вождение
licence разрешение
driver's licence водительское удостоверение
local местный
change изменять
address адрес
special экстренный
delivery доставка
special delivery срочная доставка
renew продлить срок действия
international международный
A short conversation Короткий диалог
AT THE POST OFFICE НА ПОЧТЕ

I'd like to mail a letter to Great 
Britain.

Я хотел бы отправить письмо 
в Великобританию.

By airmail or surface mail? Авиа- или обычной почтой?
Please send it by airmail. Отправьте его, пожалуйста, 

авиапочтой.
Certainly Конечно.
Also, I want to send this letter 
by registered mail, please. 

Кроме того, я хочу отправить 
это письмо как заказное, 
пожалуйста.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I'd like a stamp for a letter to 
Great Britain
I'd like to send this package
May I have a phone book?
May I have a list of area codes?
May I have your phone 
number?
I'm looking for the post office.
I'm looking for the mailbox
I'm looking for the information 
office.
Please give me a form for 
sending a package overseas.
Please give me a driver's 
licence application form
Please give me a change of 
address form
I'd like to renew my driver's 
licence
I'd like to make a telephone call
I'd like to cash an international 
money order.

The word "email" Слово “email”
email эл. почта
to email отправить по эл. почте



While "mail" is a non-count 
noun, "email" can be either 
a count noun, or a non-count 
noun.

В то время как «mail» 
является неисчисляемым 
существительным, «email» 
может быть как исчисляемым, 
так и неисчисляемым 
существительным.

A count noun: Исчисляемое 
существительное:

I received an email from a 
friend.

Я получил письмо от друга.

A non-count noun: Неисчисляемое 
существительное:

I receive a lot of email. Я получаю много электронных 
писем.

mail box / letter box почтовый ящик/ ящик для 
корреспонденции

The verb "post" can also mean 
"to publish online", and the 
noun "post" can mean "a 
message published online".

The British use the word post 
instead of mail

Глагол «post» может также 
означать «публиковать в 
сети», а существительное 
«post» может означать 
«сообщение, опубликованное 
в сети".

I posted a status update on my 
Facebook page.

Я опубликовал новый статус 
на своей странице Facebook.

He liked my post. Ему понравилась моя 
публикация.

inbox входящая почта
There is a lot of email in my 
inbox.

В моем почтовом ящике 
много электронных писем.

The phrase "airmail" Фраза “airmail”
by airmail авиапочтой
Please send this letter by 
airmail

Пожалуйста, отправьте это 
письмо авиапочтой.

The preposition "by" Предлог “by”
Let us see a few examples of 
the use of by before a noun or 
pronoun. Pay attention to the 
new meanings:

Рассмотрим несколько 
примеров употребления by 
перед существительным или 
местоимением. Обратите 
внимание на новые значения:

heart сердце
by heart наизусть
chance шанс
by chance случайно
himself себя, себе, сам
 by himself отдельно
car машина
 by car на машине
train поезд
by train поездом
way путь
 by the way кстати
day день
 by day днем
The words "license" and 
"licence"

Слова “license” и “licence”

licence/license [noun] лицензия, разрешение
licence/license [verb] выдавать лицензию, 

разрешать



Note:  
licence/license [noun]
licence/license [verb]
Same meaning - different 
spelling!

Примечание: 
существительное licence/
license, как и глагол licence/
license, имеет одинаковое 
значение, но разное 
написание.

He has a licence to sell fish У него есть лицензия на 
продажу рыбы.

This shop is licensed to sell 
alcohol.

Этот магазин имеет лицензию 
на продажу алкоголя.

The word "information" Слово "information"
The word "information" is 
a non-count noun, so we do 
not use the article "an" before 
it. Instead, we use the word 
"some".

Существительное 
«information» 
неисчисляемое, поэтому 
артикль «an» перед ними 
не ставится. Вместо него 
используется слово «some».

I'd like some information Я хотел бы получить 
некоторую информацию.

The word "renew" Слово “renew”
new новый
renew обновлять
renewal обновление
I'd like to renew my driver's 
licence.

Я хотел бы заменить 
водительские права.

Lesson 23 Урок 23
Vocabulary Словарь
account счет
bank account банковский счет
sort тип
current текущий
current account текущий счет
means средство, средства
identification идентификация
identity личность
card удостоверение
identity card удостоверение личности
fill out заполнять
request запрос
 check чек
 checkbook чековая книжка
right away сразу
forgot забыл
sign подписывать
signature подпись



deposit вклад
checking account чековый счет
saving сбережение
foreign иностранный
currency валюта
foreign currency иностранная валюта
bill банкнот
traveller путешественник
cash наличные
withdraw снимать со счёта
arrange урегулировать
standing order постоянное поручение
overdraft превышение кредита
change менять
credit кредит
credit card кредитная карта
visit визит
business card визитная карточка
credit department кредитный отдел
change обмен
bureau бюро
foreign exchange обмен иностранной валюты
safety невредимость
safe deposit хранение ценностей в сейфе
loan ссуда
loan department ссудный отдел
commercial коммерческий
adviser эксперт
commercial adviser консультант по торговле
A short conversation Короткий диалог
AT THE BANK В БАНКЕ
I'd like to open an account 
please.

Я хотел бы открыть счет, 
пожалуйста.

What sort of account would you 
like?

Какой тип счета вы хотите?

A current account please. Текущий счет, пожалуйста.
Do you have any means of 
identification?

У вас есть с собой какие-
нибудь документы, 
удостоверяющие личность?

Yes. Here's my identity card. Да, вот мое удостоверение 
личности.

Please fill out this form for an 
account opening request.

Пожалуйста, заполните эту 
форму запроса на открытие 
счета.

Can I get a  checkbook right 
away?

Могу ли я получить чековую 
книжку сразу?

You forgot to sign the form. Вы забыли подписать форму.
Here is my signature, and I'd 
like to deposit these  checks. 

Вот моя подпись, и я хотел бы 
вложить эти чеки.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I would like to open a checking 
account
I would like to open a deposit 
account



I would like to open a savings 
account
I would like to open a bank 
account
I would like to open a foreign 
currency account
I would like to deposit this  
check
I would like to deposit this bill
I would like to deposit this 
postal order
I would like to deposit this bank 
note
I would like to deposit this 
traveller's  check.
I would like to cash this  check, 
please.
I would like to withdraw 100 
dollars
I would like to arrange a 
standing order
I would like to have an overdraft
I would like to change some 
money
Here is my identity card.
Here is my account number
Here is my driver's licence.
Here is my credit card
Here is my business card
Do you have a credit 
department?
Do you have a foreign 
exchange?
Do you have a safe deposit 
box?
Do you have a loan 
department?
Do you have a commercial 
adviser?
The phrase "identification 
card" or "ID card"

Фраза “identification card” 
или “ID card”

identification удостоверение личности
The British use the phrase 
"identity card".

Британцы говорят: «identity 
card».

identity card идентификационная карта
to identify идентифицировать
identity удостоверение
The phrase "right away" Фраза "right away"
right away прямо сейчас
Come here right away! Подойдите сюда прямо 

сейчас!
The word "check" Слово “check”
 check чек
The British used the spelling 
"cheque".

Британцы пишут: "cheque".

I'd like to cash this check. Я хотел бы обналичить этот 
чек.

personal  check именной чек



We don't accept personal  
checks

Мы не принимаем 
персональные чеки.

The words "sign" and 
"signature"

Слова “sign” и “signature”

 to sign подписывать
signature подпись
Note: In the word "sign" the 
letter g is silent. However it 
is pronounced in the word 
"signature"

Примечание: в слове «sign» 
буква g не произносится, но 
она произносится в слове 
«signature».

Excuse me, where do I sign? Извините, где мне 
подписаться?

This is my signature Это моя подпись.
Types of accounts: Виды счетов:
 bank account банковский счет
current account текущий счет
deposit account вкладной счёт
 blocked account блокированный счет
closed account закрытый счет
open account открытый счет
checking account чековый счет
savings account сберегательный счет
 joint account совместный счёт
The phrase "to pay by check" Фраза “to pay by check”
 to pay by check оплатить чеком
More phrases: Еще фразы:
What's the exchange rate? Каков обменный курс?
What commission rate do you 
charge?

Какова ваша комиссионная 
ставка?

I want to deposit this in my 
account.

Я хочу внести это на свой 
счет.

The word "adviser" Слово “adviser”
adviser / advisor консультант
Do you have a commercial 
adviser?

У вас есть торговый 
советник?



Lesson 24 Урок 24
Vocabulary Словарь
going ходьба
movie theater кинотеатр
movie кино
tonight сегодня вечером
film фильм
what's on? что там идёт?
Italian итальянский
but но
understand понимать
worry беспокоиться
title название
subtitle субтитр
later позже
playing игра

program программа
concert концерт
club клуб
night club ночной клуб
show показывать
special особенный
circus цирк
American американский
English английский
Russian русский
French французский
entertain развлекать
entertaining развлекательный
dramatic драматический
satire сатира
theater театр
like films любить фильмы
listening слушание
Internet Интернет
science наука
fiction вымысел
science fiction научная фантастика
party вечеринка
Western западный
cousin двоюродный брат, 

двоюродная сестра



musical музыкальный
thriller фильм ужасов
comedy комедия
tragedy трагедия
historical исторический
fan поклонник
A short conversation Короткий диалог
GOING TO THE MOVIES ПОХОД В КИНО
Would you like to go to the 
movies tonight?

Вы хотели бы пойти в кино 
сегодня вечером?

I'd like to see a British film. Я хотел бы посмотреть 
британский фильм.

There aren't any British films 
tonight.

Сегодня вечером идут какие-
нибудь британские фильмы?

What's on tonight? Что будет идти сегодня 
вечером?

There is a good Italian film at 
the "Regent".

Будет хороший итальянский 
фильм в «Регенте».

But I don't understand Italian! Но я не понимаю 
итальянский!

Don't worry. The film has 
French subtitles. You'll 
understand it. 

Не волнуйтесь. В фильме 
есть французские субтитры. 
Вы его поймете.

See you later. Увидимся позже.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
What's playing at the movies 
tonight?
What's the concert program?
What opera is it?
What's special at the circus?
I want to see an American film
I want to see a Russian film
I want to see a French film
I want to see an entertaining 
film
Can you recommend an Italian 
film?
Can you recommend a dramatic 
show?
Can you recommend a good 
night club?
Can you recommend a good 
satire?
Can you recommend something 
light?
Are you a fan of Westerns?
Do you like movies?
Do you like surfing the Internet?
Are you a fan of science fiction 
films?
Do you like parties?
I like Westerns, but my cousin 
prefers musicals.
I like detective stories, but my 
cousin prefers tragedies



I like historical films, but my 
cousin prefers thrillers
I like science fiction, but my 
cousin prefers comedies

The word "movies" Слово «movies»
movie / movies кино/ фильмы
movie star/ star кинозвезда/ звезда
How often do you go to the 
movies?

Как часто вы ходите в кино?

The phrase "What's on?" Фраза «What’s on?»
This phrase is used a lot in the 
entertainment industry.

Эта фраза часто используется 
в индустрии развлечений.

what's on? «что идет?»
What's on T.V. tonight? Что идет по телевизору 

сегодня вечером?
The word "Italian" Слово «Italian»
Italy Италия
Italian итальянский, итальянец
He lives in Italy Он живет в Италии.
I like Italian films. Мне нравятся итальянские 

фильмы.
I have an Italian friend У меня есть друг итальянец.
He speaks Italian Он говорит по-итальянски.
More countries where the 
same word is used for both the 
nationality and the language.
Note: nationalities and 
languages are written with initial 
capital letter.

Другие страны, где одно 
слово используется для 
обозначения национальности 
и языка.  
Обратите внимание: 
национальности и языки 
пишутся с большой буквы.

Italy> Italian> Italian
America> American> American
Germany> German > German
Russia> Russian > Russian
Japan > Japanese > Japanese
Exceptions: Исключения:
Britain> British > Briton
France > French > Frenchman
Spain > Spanish > Spaniard
England > English > 
Englishman
The word "subtitles" Слово «subtitles»
subtitle субтитр
I saw an Italian film with French 
subtitles.

Я смотрел итальянский 
фильм с французскими 
субтитрами.

We use the definite article "the" 
before places of entertainment.

Перед словами, 
обозначающими зрелищные 
организации и мероприятия, 
ставится определенный 
артикль «the».

Even when not referring to a 
specific movie theater, we still 
use the definite article "the".

Даже если речь не идет о 
конкретном кинотеатре, все 
равно используется «the».

I'd like to go to the movies Я хотел бы пойти в кино.
We don’t say... Не говорят…
I'd like to go to movies



Note: We use the definite 
article "the" before other places 
of entertainment, as well.

Примечание: определенный 
артикль «the» ставится и 
перед другими названиями 
зрелищных организаций и 
мероприятий.

At the theater В театре
At the opera На опере
At the circus В цирке
At the ballet На балете
At the movies В кино
We do not use the definite 
article "the" in the following 
cases:

Определенный артикль 
«the» не употребляется в 
следующих случаях:

at school в школе
at home дома
The word "theater" Слово «theater»
theater театр
Note: The British use the 
spelling "theatre"

Примечание: британцы 
пишут: «theatre»

Can you recommend a good 
theatre?

Можете ли вы 
порекомендовать хороший 
театр?

The word "cousin" Слово «cousin»
cousin кузен/ кузина
You can only tell whether the 
word “cousin” refers to a man 
or woman based on its context.

Относится ли слово «cousin» 
к мужчине или женщине, 
можно определить только по 
контексту.

Lesson 25 Урок 25
Vocabulary Словарь
feel чувствовать
feel like хотеться
play представление
New York City Theater Театр Нью-Йорка 
performing исполнение
taming укрощение
shrew строптивая женщина
Taming of the Shrew Укрощение строптивой
love любить
Shakespeare Шекспир
performance спектакль
festival фестиваль
fair ярмарка
amusement увеселение



park парк
amusement park парк с аттракционами
scene сцена
dance танец
rehearsal репетиция
director директор
actor актер
lead actor ведущий актер
producer поставщик
star звезда
ticket билет
orchestra оркестр
back of the auditorium задняя часть зрительного 

зала
dress костюм
circle амфитеатр
seat место
front перед
row ряд
front row передний ряд
box ложа
balcony балкон
chamber камера
music музыка
chamber music камерная музыка
thrilling захватывающий
classical классический
folk народный
folk music фольклорная музыка
perfect совершенный
 light music легкая музыка
terrific потрясающий
popular популярный
A short conversation Короткий диалог
GOING TO THE THEATER ПОХОД В ТЕАТР
How about going to a concert? Как насчёт того, чтобы 

сходить на концерт?
I feel like going to the theater. Я не прочь сходить в театр.
Would you like to see a play at 
the New York City Theater?

Вы хотели бы посмотреть 
спектакль в театре Нью-
Йорка?

What's playing at the theater 
this evening?

Что представят в театре этим 
вечером?

This evening they're performing 
"Taming of the Shrew".

Сегодня вечером представят 
«Укрощение строптивой».

O.K. I love Shakespeare. Хорошо, я люблю Шекспира.
What time does the 
performance begin?

Во сколько начинается 
спектакль?

It begins at 8:30 p.m. Начало в 8:30 вечера.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I feel like going to the festival
I feel like going to the fair
I feel like going to the circus



I feel like going to the 
amusement park
What time does the 
performance begin?
What time does the show 
begin?
What time does the dance 
begin?
What time does the rehearsal 
begin?
Who's the author of the play?
Who's the director of the play?
Who's the lead actor?
Who's the producer of the play?
Who's the star of the play?
Please give me two tickets at 
the back of the auditorium
Please give me two tickets for 
the best seats
Please give me two tickets in 
the front row
Please give me two tickets on 
the balcony
The chamber music concert 
was thrilling
The classical music concert 
was superb
The folk music concert was 
perfect
The light music concert was 
terrific
The phrase "I feel like" Фраза «I feel like»
feel чувствовать
The expression "(to) feel like" Выражение «(to) feel like»
I feel like Я не прочь
I feel like going to the theater. Я не прочь пойти в театр.
I feel like going for a walk. Я не прочь прогуляться.
I feel like having a cup of tea. Я не прочь выпить чашку чая.
The word "taming" Слово «taming»
Taming of the Shrew Укрощение строптивой
 to tame приручать
tamed прирученный
untamed неприрученный
tamer дрессировщик
The phrase "in the front row" Фраза «in the front row»
In the front row в переднем ряду
We don’t say... Не говорят…
at the front row 
I'd like a ticket in the front row. Мне нужен билет в первом 

ряду.
Adjectives that express 
satisfaction and enthusiasm:

Прилагательные, 
выражающие удовольствие и 
восторг:

Synonyms for: marvelous, 
wonderful...

Синонимы к: marvelous 
(чудесный), wonderful 
(удивительный)...



marvelous, wonderful, 
glorious, splendid, gorgeous,  
magnificent
Synonyms for: fascinating, 
attractive...

Синонимы к: fascinating 
(очаровательный), attractive 
(привлекательный)...

fascinating, attractive, charming
Synonyms for: amusing, 
enjoyable...

Синонимы к: amusing 
(забавный), enjoyable 
(приятный)...

delightful, amusing, enjoyable
The show was wonderful Шоу было замечательным.
We are having a marvellous 
time.

Мы чудесно проводим время.

The weather is gorgeous. Погода великолепная.

Lesson 26 Урок 26
Vocabulary Словарь
T.V. ТВ
television телевидение
they're они
news новости
chapter серия
war война
peace мир
channel канал
worth стоящий
watching просмотр
cable кабель
cable (TV) кабельное ТВ
as far as насколько
remember помнить
wild дикий
life жизнь
wildlife дикая природа
desert пустыня
stand выносить
nature природа
documentary документальный
boring скучный
favourite любимый
T.V. show / program телешоу/ телепрограмма
cartoon мультфильм
all все



soap мыло
soap / soap opera «мыльная опера»
type тип
modern современный
modern art современное искусство
mad помешанный
mad about помешан на
crazy сумасшедший
crazy about без ума от
sport спорт
review обзор
sport review спортивный обзор
program программа
interesting интересный
fascinating увлекательный
attractive привлекающий
turn поворачивать
turn off выключать
turn up прибавлять громкость
turn on включать
A short conversation Короткий диалог
WHAT'S ON T.V.? ЧТО ИДЕТ ПО 

ТЕЛЕВИЗОРУ?
What's on T.V. this evening after 
the news?

Что будет по телевизору 
сегодня вечером после 
новостей?

At 9:00 they're showing another 
chapter of "War and Peace'',  
on channel two. 

В 9:00 будут показывать еще 
одну серию «Войны и мира» 
по второму каналу.

I don't like it. Is there anything 
worth watching on cable? 

Мне он не нравится. Есть 
ли что-нибудь стоящее 
посмотреть по кабельному?

As far as I can remember, there 
is a film about wildlife in the 
desert.

Насколько я помню, есть 
фильм о дикой природе в 
пустыне.

I can't stand nature 
documentaries. They're boring.

Я терпеть не могу 
документальные фильмы о 
природе. Они скучны.

What's your favourite T.V. 
show?

Какая ваша любимая 
телепрограмма?

I like cartoons. What's your 
favourite?

Я люблю мультфильмы. А 
какая ваша любимая?

I watch all the soaps. Я смотрю все мыльные 
оперы.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
What sort of music do you 
prefer?
What kind of music do you 
prefer?
What type of music do you 
prefer?
What style of music do you 
prefer?
I'm interested in
I  like modern art
I'm crazy about modern art



I'm fascinated by modern art
I love popular music
I love sports reviews
I love travel programs
I love documentaries
I love cartoons
Nature documentaries are 
boring
Nature documentaries are 
interesting
Nature documentaries are 
fascinating
Nature documentaries are 
amusing
Nature documentaries are 
attractive
The word "news" Слово «news»
news новости
The news is good Хорошая новость.
It is 8 o'clock PM. Here is the 
news

Сейчас 8 вечера. Вот это 
новость.

The verb "show" Глагол «show»
to show показывать
What are they showing at the 
movies?

Что показывают в кино?

The phrase "I can't stand it" Фраза «I can’t stand it»
I can't stand it Я не выношу этого.
I can't stand modern art Я не выношу современного 

искусства.
The words "watch" and "look" Слова «watch» и «look»
to watch смотреть
to look глядеть
to see видеть
Note: We use the preposition 
"at" after "look", but  after 
"watch" usually comes only "a".

Примечание: после «look» 
используется предлог «at», 
а после «watch» обычно 
ставится только «а».

I watched a show on channel 24 
last night.

Я смотрел шоу на канале 24 
прошлой ночью.

I watched a football match. Я смотрел футбольный матч.
I saw "Taming of the Shrew'' at 
the movies

Я видел «Укрощение 
строптивой» в кино.

We looked at the pictures Мы смотрели фотографии.
He is looking at me Он смотрит на меня.
The phrase "as far as I can 
remember"

Фраза «as far as I can 
remember»

as far as I can remember насколько я помню
The words "remind" and 
"remember"

Слова «remind» и 
«remember»

remember вспоминать
remind напоминать
Do you remember me now? Теперь вы меня вспомнили?
I reminded him his promise. Я напомнил ему о его 

обещании.
The word "switch" Слово «switch»
switch переключать



Note: When discussing 
electrical appliances, we use 
the following phrases:

Примечание: при 
обсуждении электроприборов 
применяются следующие 
фразы:

to turn on включать
to turn off выключать
Note: We usually do not use 
the words "open" and "close", 
when discussing electricity, 
water, or gas.

Примечание: при 
обсуждении электричества, 
воды или газа слова «open» 
и «close» обычно не 
употребляются.

It's getting dark, please turn on 
the light

Уже темнеет. Пожалуйста, 
включите свет.

Lesson 27 Урок 27
Vocabulary Словарь
request просить
appointment встреча
director директор
managing director управляющий директор
wait ждать
conference конференция
in conference на конференции
not at all не за что
oil масло
refinery очистительный завод
personnel сотрудники
manager руководитель
insurance страхование
general общий
inspector инспектор
commercial коммерческий
institute институт
chairman председатель
political политический
party партия
principal главный
defense оборона
college колледж
first name имя
last name фамилия
maiden незамужняя
maiden name девичья фамилия
former бывший



former name прежнее имя
eleven одиннадцать
quarter четверть
quarter to ten без четверти десять
past после
ten past nine десять минут десятого
exactly ровно
noon полдень
expect ожидать
ten десять
advertising реклама
real estate недвижимость
broker брокер
girlfriend подруга
once один раз
at once сразу
as soon as как только
possible возможный
immediately немедленно
right правый
right away тотчас
within в пределах
A short conversation Короткий диалог
REQUESTING AN 
APPOINTMENT

НАЗНАЧЕНИЕ ВСТРЕЧИ

Good morning. Can I help you? Доброе утро. Могу ли я вам 
помочь?

Yes, I have an appointment with 
the managing director. 

Да, у меня назначена встреча 
с управляющим директором.

What time is your appointment, 
Sir? 

На сколько назначена ваша 
встреча, сэр?

At half past ten. На половину одиннадцатого.
What's your name please? Представьтесь, пожалуйста.
Green, Mark Green. Грин, Марк Грин.
I'm sorry, you'll have to wait a 
few minutes. The managing 
director  
is in a conference. 

Мне очень жаль, но вам 
придется подождать 
несколько минут. 
Управляющий директор 
сейчас 
на конференции.

Thank you very much. Большое спасибо.
Not at all. Не за что.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I'm writing a letter to the director 
of the oil refinery
I'm writing a letter to the general 
inspector of the insurance 
company
I'm writing a letter to the 
personnel manager of the 
commercial institute
I'm writing a letter to the 
chairman of the political party
What's your name?
What's your first name?



What's your last name?
What's your maiden name?
What's your former name?
I have an appointment at half 
past eleven
I have an appointment at a 
quarter to ten
I have an appointment at 10 
minutes past nine
I have an appointment at 
exactly seven o'clock.
I have an appointment at noon
The managing director is 
expecting you at ten o'clock
Your wife is expecting you at 
ten o'clock
Your advertising agent is 
expecting you at ten o'clock
Your real estate broker is 
expecting you at ten o'clock
Your girlfriend is expecting you 
at ten o'clock
May I see you at once?
May I see you as soon as 
possible?
May I see you immediately?
May I see you right away?
May I see you within half an 
hour?
The phrase "Can I help you?" Фраза «Can I help you?»
Can I help you Могу ли я вам помочь?
The phrase “What can I do for 
you?”

Фраза “What can I do for 
you?”

What can I do for you? Что я могу для вас сделать?
The phrase "What time?" Фраза «What time?»
What time...? Который час?
What time is it? Сколько времени?
The word “conference” Слово “conference”

conference конференция
in a conference на конференции
The phrase “Not at all” Фраза “Not at all”
not at all не стоит благодарности
When someone says "thank 
you", you can answer them 
with the following phrase:

Когда кто-то говорит 
«спасибо», вы можете 
ответить им следующей 
фразой:

You are welcome Пожалуйста
The phrase "real estate agent" Фраза «real estate agent»
real estate agent агент по недвижимости
Your real estate agent is 
expecting you at 10 o'clock

Ваш агент по недвижимости 
ждет вас в 10 часов.

The words "girlfriend" and 
"boyfriend"

Слова «girlfriend» и 
«boyfriend»

friend друг
 girlfriend любимая девушка
boyfriend возлюбленный



The phrase "at once" Фраза «at once»
at once сразу
May I see you at once? Мы можем увидеться сейчас?
Prepositions with time 
expressions

Предлоги с выражениями 
времени

at, in, on  )with time 
expressions(

в, в, на

The preposition "at" Предлог «at»
We use the preposition "at" 
before an exact time or a meal.

Предлог «at» употребляется 
перед обозначениями точного 
времени или времени приема 
пищи.

at three o'clock в три часа
at lunchtime в обеденный перерыв
at night ночью
at midnight в полночь
The preposition "in" Предлог «in»
 in April в апреле
 in 1990 в 1990 году
 in winter зимой
 in the morning утром
 in the evening вечером
The preposition "on" Предлог «on»
We use the preposition "on" 
before dates and days of the 
week.

Предлог «on» употребляется 
перед обозначениями дат и 
дней недели.

on Monday в понедельник
on Saturday morning в субботу утром
 on the first of May первого мая
 on Independence Day в день независимости
The preposition "within" Предлог «within»
within в течение
within half an hour в течение получаса

Lesson 28 Урок 28
Vocabulary Словарь
doctor врач
wrong неправильный
what's wrong? что не так?
with you с вами
bad плохой
cold простуда
mouth рот
say говорить



throat горло
sore больной

breathe дышать
deeply глубоко
hold задерживать
breath дыхание
stay оставаться
home дом
probably вероятно
flu грипп
better лучше
stay in bed вылежать
prescription рецепт
medicine лекарство
spoon ложка
tablespoon столовая ложка
headache головная боль
temperature температура
high temperature (fever) высокая температура (жар)
sore throat больное горло
pain боль
chest грудь
diarrhea диарея
general practitioner (GP) врач общей практики
skin кожа
specialist специалист
eye глаз
eye specialist офтальмолог
gynecologist гинеколог

lie down лечь
stick out your tongue высуньте язык
roll up закатать
blood кровь
pressure давление
specimen образец
urine моча
X-ray рентген
sample проба

injection инъекция
pill таблетка
antibiotic антибиотик
antiseptic антисептик
A short conversation Короткий диалог
AT THE DOCTOR'S У ВРАЧА
What's wrong with you? На что жалуетесь?
I have a bad cold. У меня сильная простуда.
Please open your mouth and 
say "Ahh...".

Пожалуйста, откройте рот и 
скажите: «Ааа...».

My throat is very sore. У меня очень болит горло.
Now breathe deeply, then hold 
your breath.

Теперь глубоко дышите, 
затем задержите дыхание.

Will I need to stay at home? Мне нужно будет оставаться 
дома?



You probably have the flu. Вероятно, у вас грипп.
I'd better stay in bed for 3 or 4 
days.

Мне лучше оставаться в 
постели в течение 3 или 4 
дней.

I'll give you a prescription Я выпишу вам рецепт.
How do I take the medicine? Как принимать лекарства?
Take one tablespoon three 
times a day after meals.

Принимать по столовой ложке 
три раза в день после еды.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I have a headache
I have a high temperature
I have a sore throat
I have a pain in my chest.
Can you recommend a general 
practitioner?
Can you recommend a skin 
specialist?
Can you recommend an eye 
specialist?
Can you recommend a 
children's doctor?
Can you recommend a good 
gynecologist?
Please lie down.
Please stick out your tongue.
Please breathe deeply
Please open your mouth
Please pull up your sleeve
I'd like to take your temperature
I'd like to take your blood 
pressure
I'd like to have an X-ray taken
I'd like to take a blood sample
I'll give you an injection
I'll give you a prescription
I'll give you some pills.
I'll give you an antibiotic
I'll give you an antiseptic
The phrase "at the doctor's" Фраза «at the doctor’s»
at the doctor's clinic= at the 
doctor's

на приеме у врача

at the gynecologist's clinic= at 
the gynecologist's

на приеме у гинеколога

The word "sore" Слово «sore»
sore (adj) воспаленный
sore (n) воспаление
 I have a sore throat У меня болит горло.
I have a bad cold. У меня сильная простуда.
I have a headache. У меня болит голова.
I have a backache У меня боли в спине.
I have a stomachache. У меня болит живот.
The phrase "breathe deeply" Фраза «breathe deeply»
breathe дышать
breath дыхание
Please breathe deeply. Пожалуйста, дышите глубоко.



The verb "put" Глагол «put»
When we use a preposition 
after the verb "put", the verb's 
meaning changes.

Когда после глагола «put» 
стоит предлог, значение 
глагола меняется.

put класть
 put out выкладывать
put on надевать

Lesson 29 Урок 29
Vocabulary Словарь
dentist стоматолог
tooth зуб
toothache зубная боль
lie лежать
lie down ложиться
think думать
loose шатающаяся
filling пломба
pain боль
bottom низ
front перед
which спереди
hurt болеть
just только что
touch касаться
cavity кариес
check проверять
wisdom мудрость
wisdom tooth зуб мудрости
side сторона
X-ray рентгеновский снимок
take an X-ray делать рентген
to do делать
drilling сверление
terrible жуткий
awful ужасный
horrible страшный
annoying раздражающий
right now прямо сейчас

silver серебро
crown коронка
false искусственный
bridge мост



denture зубной протез
extract вырывать
operate оперировать
gums десны
temporary временный
temporary filling временная пломба
temporarily временно
abscess абсцесс
anesthetic обезболивающее средство
broken сломанный
broken denture сломанный зубной протез
rotten гнилой
rotten tooth гнилой зуб
urgently срочно
swollen опухший
bleed кровоточить
keep bleeding продолжать кровоточить
A short conversation Короткий диалог
AT THE DENTIST'S НА ПРИЕМЕ У 

СТОМАТОЛОГА
I've got a toothache. У меня болит зуб.
Please lie down and open your 
mouth.

Пожалуйста, лягте и откройте 
рот.

I think I have a loose filling, too. У меня также шатается 
пломба.

Where's the pain? Где болит?
At the bottom, in the front. Внизу спереди.
Which tooth hurts? Какой зуб болит?
The one you just touched. Тот, которого вы только что 

коснулись.
Your tooth has a cavity. You 
need a filling. 

На вашем зубе кариес. Вам 
нужна пломба.

Please check the wisdom teeth 
on the right side.

Проверьте, пожалуйста, зуб 
мудрости с правой стороны.

I'll take an X-ray and do some 
drilling. 

Я сделаю рентгеновский 
снимок и немного посверлю 
зуб.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I have a terrible toothache.
I have an awful toothache.
I have a horrible toothache.

I have an annoying toothache.
You need a filling. 
You need a false tooth. We can 
do it right now
You need a bridge. 
You need a denture!
I'll have to give you an injection.
I'll have to extract the tooth
I'll have to drill
I'll have to operate
I'll have to put in a temporary 
filling.



I have a cavity.
I have a loose filling
I have an abscess
I have a broken denture
I have a rotten tooth
Can you recommend a dentist?
Can you fix it temporarily?
Can you give me an 
anesthetic?
Can you repair it?
Can you extract it?
My gums hurt. I need an 
appointment urgently.
My gums are swollen. I need an 
appointment urgently.
My gums keep bleeding. I need 
an appointment urgently.
My gums are very sore. I need 
an appointment urgently.
My gums ache. I need an 
appointment urgently.
The phrase "I have" Фраза «I have»
I have У меня есть
I have a toothache. У меня болит зуб.
I have a headache. У меня болит голова.
The word "filling" Слово «filling»
to fill пломбировать
filling пломба
I have lost a filling. Я потерял пломбу.
The filling has come out Выпала пломба.
The word "drilling" Слово «drilling»
to drill сверлить
drilling сверление
I'll do some drilling. Я немного посверлю.
The verb "extract" Глагол «extract»
to extract вырывать
extraction удаление
I have a rotten tooth. Can you 
extract it? 

У меня есть гнилой зуб. Вы 
можете его вырвать?

Lesson 30 Урок 30
Vocabulary Словарь
(to) book (verb) заказывать
flight полет



seventh седьмой
date дата
arrange организовывать
stopover транзитная остановка
European европейский
leaving отбывать
Rome Рим
transit транзит
should должен
collect забирать
reservation бронирование
desk стойка
reservation desk ресепшн бронирования
departure отлет
one-way односторонний
one-way ticket билет в одну сторону
business class бизнес-класс
round trip поездка туда и обратно
return обратный полёт
return ticket обратный билет
class класс
baggage багаж
receipt получение
luggage поклажа
ahead заранее
box коробка
cargo груз
cargo flight грузовой рейс
check регистрировать
suitcase чемодан
date дата
intend намереваться
seat место
flight number номер рейса
refund возвращать деньги
ticket билет
aisle проход
assign назначать
good for действующий
valid действительный
train поезд
stop остановка
platform платформа
remain оставаться
terminal терминал

A short conversation Короткий диалог
BOOKING A FLIGHT БРОНИРОВАНИЕ ПОЛЕТА
I'd like to book a flight to New 
York for the seventh of this 
month. 

Я хотел бы забронировать 
рейс в Нью-Йорк на седьмое 
число этого месяца.

I'm afraid there aren't any flights 
to New York on that date

Боюсь, что на эту дату рейсов 
в Нью-Йорк нет.



Can you arrange a flight with a 
stopover at a European airport 
for me?

Можете ли вы организовать 
для меня полет с посадкой в 
европейском аэропорту?

There's a flight leaving for 
Rome at 9 a.m., but you'll have 
to wait about 3 hours in transit 
at the airport in Rome.

Есть полет с отправлением 
в Рим в 9 утра, но вам 
придется ждать около 3 часов 
транзитом в аэропорту Рима.

At what time should I be at the 
airport? 

Во сколько я должен быть в 
аэропорту?

Your ticket should be collected 
from the reservation desk at 
the airport 60 minutes before 
departure.

Ваш билет должны забрать 
на ресепшне бронирования 
в аэропорту за 60 минут до 
вылета.

Thank you very much. Большое спасибо.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
May I have a one-way ticket?
May I have a business class 
ticket?
May I have a round-trip ticket?
May I have a return ticket?
May I have a first-class ticket?
I'd like to get a baggage receipt.
I'd like to send my luggage 
ahead.
I'd like to send this box on a 
cargo flight
I'd like to check my suitcase
I want to fly on that date
I prefer to fly on Sunday
I'd like to fly in the evening
I hope to fly tomorrow.
I intend to fly at four o'clock.
Would you please give me my 
flight number?
Would you please refund my 
ticket?
Would you please let me have 
a seat on the aisle?
How long is the return ticket 
good for?
How long is this ticket valid?
How long will the train stop 
here?
How long does this flight take?
How long will we remain in the 
airport terminal?
The verb "book" Глагол «book»

to book бронировать
I'd like to book a flight to New 
York. 

Я хотел бы забронировать 
полёт в Нью-Йорк.

The phrase "leaving for" Фраза «leaving for»
to leave отправляться
leaving for вылет в
There's a flight leaving for New 
York at 10 o'clock.

Есть рейс с вылетом в Нью-
Йорк в 10 часов.

The word "ahead" Слово «ahead»



ahead вперед
I'd like to send my luggage 
ahead. 

Я хотел бы отправить свой 
багаж вперед.

The phrase “a European” Фраза “a European”
Although the word "European" 
starts with the letter e (a vowel), 
we use the indefinite article 
"a" and not "an" because 
"European" sounds like it starts 
with the letter y (a consonant).

Хотя слово «European» 
начинается с буквы e 
(гласной), перед ним ставится 
неопределенный артикль 
«a», а не «an», поскольку 
«European» звучит так, как 
будто начинается с буквы y 
(согласной).

This is a useful book Это полезная книга.
I have an umbrella. У меня есть зонт.

Lesson 31 Урок 31
Vocabulary Словарь
check регистрировать

today's flight сегодняшний полет
scales весы
almost почти
nineteen девятнадцать
overweight перевес
boarding посадка
pass пропуск
boarding pass посадочный талон
take off вылетать
in an hour через час
information desk информационная стойка
lounge зал ожидания
departure lounge зал вылета
arrival прилёт
arrival hall зал прилёта
customs duty таможенная пошлина
free свободный
duty-free беспошлинный
duty-free shop магазин беспошлинной 

продажи
trolley тележка
cancel отменять
confirm подтверждать
endorse одобрять
in a few minutes через несколько минут
depart вылетать



arrive прилетать
land делать посадку
leave отбывать
a while промежуток времени
landing посадка
strip полоса
landing strip посадочная полоса
transit hall зал для транзитных 

пассажиров
runway взлётно-посадочная полоса
keep an eye on глаз не спускать с
looking for ищу
representative представитель
representative of the company представитель компании
things вещи
guard охранник
policeman полицейский
basket корзина
interpreter переводчик
social социальный
worker работник
social worker социальный работник
A short conversation Короткий диалог
AT THE AIRPORT В АЭРОПОРТУ
I'd like to check my reservation 
for today's flight to New York. 

Я хотел бы проверить свою 
бронь на сегодняшний рейс в 
Нью-Йорк.

May I see your ticket? Могу я взглянуть на ваш 
билет?

Here it is. Вот он.
Put your luggage on the scales 
please.

Положите свой багаж на весы, 
пожалуйста.

How much does it weigh? Сколько он весит?
It's almost 19 kilos. You don't 
have to pay for overweight.

Почти 19 килограммов. Вам 
не придется платить за 
перевес.

Here's your boarding pass. Your 
flight number is 209. It takes 
off in  
an hour.

Вот ваш посадочный талон. 
Ваш номер рейса 209. 
Самолет вылетает через час.

Exercise Упражнение

Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.

Where's the information desk?
Where's the departure lounge?
Where's the arrival hall?
Where's the duty free shop?
Where's the luggage cart?
I want to check my reservation
I want to change my reservation
I want to cancel my reservation
I want to confirm my reservation
The airplane takes off in a few 
minutes
The airplane departs in a few 
minutes



The airplane arrives in a few 
minutes
The airplane lands in a few 
minutes
The airplane leaves in a few 
minutes
You'll have to wait at the airport 
for a short while.
You'll have to wait at the landing 
strip for a short while.
You'll have to wait at the air 
terminal for a short while.
You'll have to wait in the transit 
hall for a short while.
You'll have to wait at the runway 
for a short while.
Please keep an eye on my 
luggage
Please keep an eye on my 
things
Please keep an eye on my 
baggage
The phrase "flight No." Фраза «flight No.»
flight No. 209 рейс номер 209
Note: The name of "0" is 
usually zero. In spoken 
language (mainly in the US) 
it is called oh. A third name 
is naught or nought (mainly 
in British English) meaning 
"nothing". The number 209 is 
read as "two oh nine".

Примечание: «0»обычно 
называется zero (ноль). В 
разговорной речи (в основном 
в США) его называют oh (о). 
Третье название - naught 
или nought (в основном в 
британском английском), 
означающее «ничего». Число 
209 читается как «two oh 
nine».

The word "reservation" Слово «reservation»
reservation бронирование
The phrase "today's flight" Фраза «today’s flight»
today's flight сегодняшний вылет
We can use the possessive "'s" 
when discussing time.

При обсуждении времени 
может использоваться 
притяжательное «s».

 I'd like to cancel my reservation 
for today's flight. 

Я хочу отменить 
бронирование на 
сегодняшний вылет.

The word "scales" Слово «scales»
scales весы
Put your suitcase on the scales. Поставьте ваш чемодан на 

весы.
The phrase "take off" Фраза «take off»
to take off отрываться (от земли, воды)
In this lesson, the phrase "take 
off" refers to when an airplane 
lifts off the ground.

В этом уроке фраза «take off» 
обозначает то, что самолет 
отрывается от земли.

The airplane takes off in a few 
minutes.

Самолет вылетает через 
несколько минут.

The phrase "in an hour" Фраза «in an hour»
in an hour через час
within an hour в течение часа



The airplane lands in an hour. Самолет совершит посадку 
через час.

Lesson 32 Урок 32
Vocabulary Словарь
airplane самолет
welcome добро пожаловать
aboard на борт
welcome aboard приветствуем вас на борту 

самолёта
over there вон там
third row третий ряд
on the right справа
aisle проход
next to the aisle рядом с проходом
put on надевать
rack полка
floor пол
miss пропускать
really sorry очень жаль
section секция
fasten застёгивать
fasten your seatbelts пристегните ремни
seatbelts ремни безопасности
refrain воздерживаться
ladies дамы
gentleman господин
gentlemen господа
flight attendant бортпроводник
captain капитан
crew экипаж
leaving for направляется в
pleasant приятный
most pleasant самый приятный
journey полёт
in the rear в задней части
in the front в передней части
where откуда
travel путешествовать
agent агент
travel agent турагент
passenger пассажир
cafeteria кафетерий



inquiry справка
inquiry office справочное бюро
coat пальто
coatroom раздевалка
dine обедать
dining room столовая
eight восемь
gate eight секция восемь
A short conversation Короткий диалог
ON THE AIRPLANE 
(AEROPLANE )

В САМОЛЕТЕ

Good morning, sir. Welcome 
aboard. 

Доброе утро, сэр. 
Приветствуем вас на борту 
нашего самолёта

Good morning. Доброе утро.
Your seat is over there, third 
row on the right, next to the 
aisle. 

Ваше место там, в третьем 
ряду справа, рядом с 
проходом.

May I put my bag on the rack? Можно, я положу сумку на 
полку?

No, sir. Please put it on the floor 
under the seat. You can put 
your coat on the rack

Нет, сэр. Пожалуйста, 
поставьте ее на пол под 
сиденьем. Вы можете 
положить пальто на полку.

Please fasten your seatbelts 
and refrain from smoking. 

Пожалуйста, пристегните 
ремни и воздержитесь от 
курения.

Another short conversation Другой короткий разговор
Ladies and Gentlemen. My 
name is Emily

Дамы и господа, меня зовут 
Эмили

I'm your flight attendant for this 
flight.

Я ваша стюардесса на этом 
рейсе.

Captain Mark and his crew 
welcome you aboard flight 222

Капитан Марк и его команда 
приветствуют вас на борту 
рейса 222.

We are now leaving for New 
York Airport

Мы сейчас направляемся в 
аэропорт Нью-Йорка.

Have a pleasant journey. Приятного полёта.

Exercise Упражнение

Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Your seat is over there.
Your seat is on the right
Your seat is on the left
Your seat is next to the aisle.
Your seat is in the first row
May I have a seat next to the 
window?
May I have a seat in the rear?
May I have a seat in the front?
Ladies and Gentlemen. This is 
your captain
Ladies and Gentlemen. This is 
your flight attendant

The word "airplane" Слово «airplane»



The British use the word 
"aeroplane" instead.

Британцы используют 
слово «aeroplane» вместо 
«airplane».

The word "abroad" Слово «abroad»
Notice the following 
differences...

Отметьте следующие 
отличия...

to board подниматься на борт
on board на борту
aboard на борту
The phrase "I'm terribly sorry" Фраза «I’m terribly sorry»
I'm terribly sorry Я очень сожалею
The word "crew" Слово «crew»
crew экипаж
Note: Collective nouns can 
be be followed by a verb in 
singular or plural form.

Примечание: за 
собирательными 
существительными 
может следовать глагол 
в единственном или 
множественном числе.

When we refer to the group 
as one unit, we use a verb in 
singular form.

Когда говорится о группе как 
едином целом, употребляется 
глагол в единственном числе.

Our team is the most popular Наша команда - самая 
популярная.

When referring to the group's 
members, we use a verb in 
plural form.

При обращении к членам 
группы используется глагол 
во множественном числе.

Our team are wearing their new 
jerseys

Наша команда носит новую 
униформу.

Other collective nouns: Другие собирательные 
существительные:

group группа
family семья
club клуб

Lesson 33 Урок 33
Vocabulary Словарь
passport паспорт
control контроль
passport control паспортный контроль
purpose цель
visit визит
visiting посещение
parents родители
who кто



country страна
stay пребывание
expect рассчитывать
for about приблизительно
fortnight две недели
pleasant stay приятного пребывания

visa виза
document документ
car documents документы на машину
insurance страховка
insurance card страховая карта
health здоровье
card карта
national health insurance государственное медицинское 

страхование
birth рождение
certificate свидетельство
birth certificate свидетельство о рождении
business дело
business trip командировка
relative родственник
en route в пути
suppose предполагать
guess догадываться
imagine воображать
think думать
seen (see) видел (причастие прош. 

времени «to see»)
I haven't seen Я не видел
partner партнер
recently недавно
for a fortnight в течение двух недель
ago тому назад
several несколько
several days несколько дней
lecture лекция
since начиная с
wedding свадьба
marry жениться
get married пожениться
public общественный
library библиотека
public library публичная библиотека
independence независимость
A short conversation Короткий диалог
PASSPORT CONTROL ПАСПОРТНЫЙ КОНТРОЛЬ
Where do you come from? Откуда вы?
I come from France, but I live in 
Spain. 

Я прибыл из Франции, но 
живу в Испании.

May I see your passport? Могу я взглянуть на ваш 
паспорт?

Here you are. Вот, пожалуйста.
What's the purpose of your 
visit?

Какова цель вашего визита?



I'm visiting my parents who live 
in this country.

Я приехал навестить своих 
родителей, которые здесь 
живут.

How long do you intend to stay 
in England?

Как долго вы планируете 
оставаться в Англии?

I expect to be here for about 
two weeks.

Я рассчитываю пробыть 
здесь около двух недель.

I hope you'll have a pleasant 
stay.

Желаем вам приятного 
отдыха

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
May I see your visa?
May I see your car documents?
May I see your insurance card?
May I see your National Health 
Insurance?
May I see your birth certificate?
I'm on vacation
I'm on holiday
I'm on a business trip
I'm visiting relatives.
I'm en route.
I expect I'll be here for a week.
I suppose I'll be here for a 
week.
I guess I'll be here for a week.
I imagine I'll be here for a week.
I think I'll be here for a week.
I haven't seen my partners 
recently
I haven't seen my partners for a 
fortnight
I haven't seen my partners for 
several days
I haven't seen my partners 
since the wedding.
I haven't seen my partners 
since I got married.
How long do you intend to stay 
in England?
How long does it take to get to 
the public library?
How long were you in London?
How long ago was the Civil 
War?
How long ago did you live in 
Los Angeles?
The phrase “how long” Фраза “how long”
long длительный
how long? Как давно?
How long ago did you live in 
Los Angeles?

Как давно вы живете в Лос-
Анджелесе?

The word “intend” Слово “intend”
intend собираться



The word “intend” is followed 
by another verb in the infinitive 
form.

За словом «intend» 
следует другой глагол в 
неопределенной форме.

We intend to leave in a month. Мы собираемся уехать через 
месяц.

I intend to stay in England in 
March

Я хочу погостить в Англии в 
марте.

The phrase “here you are” Фраза “here you are”
here you are Держите.
The verb “to stay” Глагол “to stay”
to stay оставаться
to stay at a hotel остановиться в отеле
to stay at home сидеть дома
to come to stay приехать надолго
I expect to stay here for a 
fortnight

Я рассчитываю прожить здесь 
две недели.

The word “partner” Слово “partner”
partner партнер
You can only tell whether the 
word “partner” (and many other 
nouns in English, a language 
without grammatical gender) 
refers to a man or woman 
based on its context.

Относится ли слово 
«partner» (и многие 
другие существительные 
в английском языке без 
грамматического рода) к 
мужчине или женщине, 
можно определить только по 
контексту.

The words “holiday” and 
"vacation"

Слова «holiday» и «vacation»

The British use the word 
"holiday".

Британцы используют слово 
«holiday».

holiday отпуск
I met my brother on holiday in 
Paris.

Я встретил своего брата во 
время отпуска в Париже.

I spent my summer holiday in 
Europe

Я провел летний отпуск в 
Европе.

Americans prefer to say 
“vacation”.

Американцы предпочитают 
говорить «vacation».

The word “ago” Слово «ago»
long ago давно
two years ago два года назад
some time ago некоторое время назад
The prepositions: in, on Предлоги: in, on

The preposition “in” is usually 
used with cities and villages.

Предлог «in» обычно 
употребляется с названиями 
городов и деревень.

I live in a small village. Я живу в маленькой деревне.
But... Но…
I live on a farm. Я живу на ферме.
The preposition “on” is used 
with the word “farm”.

Со словом «farm» 
используется предлог «on».

I'm here on a business trip. Я здесь в командировке.
on a trip в поездке



Lesson 34 Урок 34
Vocabulary Словарь
customs таможня
declare декларировать
nothing ничего
particular особенный
in particular конкретно
have to быть вынужденным
look at проверять
case чемодан
inspect осматривать
other другой
gift подарок
children дети
personal личный
belongings принадлежности
handbag сумка
carton коробка
cigarettes сигареты
carton of cigarettes блок сигарет 
believe верить
within в рамках
allowance допущение
close закрывать
alcoholic алкогольный
beverage напиток
tobacco табак
alcoholic beverages алкогольные напитки
backpack рюкзак
locker запирающийся шкафчик
sack мешок
sleeping bag спальный мешок
package пакет
bride невеста
bridegroom жених
friend друг
family семья
relation отношение
duffle bag вещевой мешок
briefcase портфель
cognac коньяк
perfume духи



bottle of perfume флакон духов
cigar сигара
box of cigars коробка сигар
liter литр
half a liter пол-литра
liquor спиртной напиток
A short conversation Короткий диалог
AT CUSTOMS НА ТАМОЖНЕ
Do you have anything to 
declare?

У вас есть вещи, подлежащие 
декларированию?

Nothing in particular. Ничего особенного.
I'll have a look at this suitcase. 
Please open it.

Я посмотрю этот чемодан. 
Пожалуйста, откройте его.

Yes, O.K. Do you want to 
inspect the other bags too? 

Да, ладно. Хотите осмотреть 
другие сумки тоже?

What's that? Что это?
These are gifts for my husband 
and children

Это подарки для моего мужа 
и детей.

And what's in your hand 
luggage?

А что в ручной клади?

A bottle of whisky and a carton 
of cigarettes. 

Бутылка виски и блок сигарет.

I believe it's within my duty-free 
allowance.

Надеюсь, что они 
предусмотрены нормой на 
беспошлинный ввоз товаров.

Do I have to pay duty? Мне нужно заплатить 
пошлину?

No. You can close your bags. 
Thank you

Нет, вы можете закрыть свои 
сумки. Спасибо.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Do you have any alcoholic 
beverages to declare?
Do you have any tobacco to 
declare?
Do you have any foreign 
currency to declare?
Do you have any brandy to 
declare?
This is my backpack
This is my locker
This is my sack
This is my sleeping bag
This is my package
These are presents for my bride
These are presents for my 
bridegroom
These are presents for my 
friend
These are presents for my 
family
These are presents for my 
relatives
My personal belongings are 
ready for inspection.
My duffle bags are ready for 
inspection.



My briefcase is ready for 
inspection.
My backpack is ready for 
inspection.
The duty-free allowance 
includes a bottle of cognac.
The duty-free allowance 
includes a bottle of perfume
The duty-free allowance 
includes a carton of cigarettes
The duty-free allowance 
includes a box of cigars
The duty-free allowance 
includes half a liter of…
The duty-free allowance 
includes alcoholic beverages

The phrase “have to” Фраза “have to”
have to приходиться
I have to go home Я должен идти домой.
Note: The past tense of “have 
to” is “had to”, which is also 
used as the past tense of 
“must”.

Примечание: форма 
прошедшего времени «have 
to»- глагол «had», который 
также является формой 
прошедшего времени «must».

I was tired, I had to go home. Я устал, мне пришлось пойти 
домой.

The word “customs” Слово “customs”
customs таможня
The customs official asked me 
to open my suitcase

Таможенник попросил меня 
открыть чемодан.

The phrase “nothing to 
declare”

Фраза “nothing to declare”

I have nothing to declare. Мне нечего декларировать.
I don't have anything to declare. У меня нет ничего для 

декларирования.
Note: The verb “have” is 
followed by “nothing”. The verb 
“haven’t” (negative form) is 
followed by “anything”.

Примечание: за глаголом 
«have» следует «nothing», 
а за глаголом «haven’t» 
(отрицательная форма) 
следует «anything».

We don’t say...

I haven't nothing 
I didn't earn anything.
I earned nothing.
The phrase “for inspection” Фраза “for inspection”
inspection осмотр
for inspection для осмотра
My suitcase is ready for 
inspection

Мой чемодан готов к 
проверке.

The word “personal” Слово «personal»
person человек

personal личный
The word “particular” Слово «particular»
particular отдельно взятый
in particular особенно



 for no particular reason без особого основания
Why did you choose this 
particular subject?

Почему вы выбрали именно 
эту тему?

I have nothing to declare in 
particular.

Мне особо нечего 
декларировать.






